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Induss Food Products & Equipments Limited
CIN: L35204WB1987PLC031664

238B A J C BOSE ROAD, KOLKATA- 700020

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 46t Annual General Meeting of members of M/s
Induss Food Products & Equipments Limited will be held on 25/09/2024 at 11.00 A.M. at
the Registered Office of the Company at 238/B, A.J.C. Bose Road, 3rd Floor, Kolkatq -
700020 West Bengal to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To received, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the reports of the Board of
Directors with all annexures and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Sadhana Agarwal (DIN: 02239529), who retires by
rotation and being eligible has offered herself for re -appointment at this Annual
eneral Meeting and

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To Re-appointment Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal (DIN: 00322011) as the Managing
Director

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197 and any other
upplicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the rules made there
under, as amended from time to time, read with Schedule V to the Act, and Articles of
Association of the Company and subject to the approval of Central Government or
other Government authority/agency/board, if any, the consent of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal as
Managing Director of the Company for a period of 1.5 Years with effect from
01.10.2024 upto 31.08.2026 upon the terms and conditions set out in the Explanatory
Statement annexed to the Notice convening this meeting (including remuneration to
be paid in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the
period of 1.5 years from the date of his re-appointment), with liberty to the Board of
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shalll be
ueemed to include any Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its POWETS,
including the powers conferred by this Resolution) to alter and vary terms and
conditions of the said appointment in such manner as may be agreed to between Mr.
Aggarwal and “the Board.”
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take such steps as
may be necessary for obtaining necessary approvals - statutory, contractual or
otherwise, in relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of and
incidental thereto and to sign and execute deeds, applications, documents and
writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company and generally to do all such
other acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or
incidental for giving effect to this Resolution.

- APPROVE THE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION OF THE COMPANY TO BE ENTERED
INTO WITH ITS RELATED PARTIES DURING THE FY-2024-2025.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Section 188 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act”) read with applicable
rules issued under the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force), Regulation 23 and other applicable provisions of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) the Company's Policy on
“Materiality of Related Party Transactions and also on dealing with Related Party
Transactions” and all other laws and regulations, as may be applicable, as amended,
supplemented or re-enacted from time to time being in force , The consent of the
members be and is hereby accorded to enter into any coniracts(s) /Agreement(s)
/Transaction(s) in the form of borrowings/availing of additional loans and advances/
Investment(s)./guarantee(s) /subscription(s) in securities as may be required from time
to time by the Company with its Related Parties i.e. Subsidiary Companies and or
Associate Companies where the Promoters/Directors are the interested parties within
the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act,2013 and or individually with its
Directors/Promoters/Shareholders where the total value of transactions exceeds ten
percent Annual Consolidated Turnover of the listed entity or such other limit as may
be specified under the SEBI Listing Regulations or any amendment thereof but not
exceeding the maximum aggregate value of Rs. 30 crores(thirty crores) for the
Financial Year 2024-2025. provided that the said transactions to be entered into shall
be on arm’s length basis and on such terms and conditions as may be considered
appropriate by the Board of Directors and Audit Committee.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be of the Company
be and are hereby severally authorised to do all necessary acts, deeds, things and
execute all such documents, undertaking as may be necessary in this regard from
time to fime to give effect to the above resolution.”

By the order of the Board
For Induss Food Products & Equipments Ltd

Place: Kolkata . :Z;Qf ! Lg_:)cl
Date: 23/08/2024 == R

Narendra Narayan Mondal
Company Secretary
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Notes:

. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 (Act) a member entitled to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM") is entitled to appoint
a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of him/herself and the proxy need not
be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy should,
however, be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-
eight (48) hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding
in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend
the Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the
AGM.

. Brief resume of Directors including those proposed to be appointed / re-appointed,
nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, names of companies in which
they hold directorships and memberships / chairmanships of Board Committees,
shareholding and relatfionships between directors inter-se as stipulated under
provisions of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges and other applicable
regulations has been provided in the explanatory statements of the Notice.

. The Register of Member & Share Transfer Book of the company will remain closed
from 19/09/2024 to 25/09/2024 (both days inclusive).

. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to infimate immediately
any change in their address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in
physical form are requested to advise any change in their address or bank
mandates immediately to the Company / Registrar.

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) recently mandated furnishing of
PAN, KYC detdqils (i.e. Postal Address with PIN Code , E-mail Address, Mobile No,
Bank Account details) and Nomination details of Holders of Securities effective
from 1st January,2022 , any service requests or complaints received from the
member, will not be processed by RTA till the aforesaid details / documents are
provided to RTA .On and after 1st April,2023, in case any of the cited document/
details are not available in the Folio(s) , RTA shall be constraint to freeze such
Folio(s) .Relevant details and the Forms are prescribed by SEBI.
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7. Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised to make
nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company by submitting Form
No.SH-13. If the member desired to cancel the earlier Nomination and Record a
fresh Nomination, He / She may submit the same in Form SH-14.

8. As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI (LODR), as amended, securities of Listed
Companies can be transferred only in dematerialised form with effect from 1st April
2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of
securities. In view of this and fo eliminate all risks associated with physical shares
and for ease of portfolio management, Members holding shares in physical form
are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialised form.
Members can contact the Company's Registrar for assistance in this regard.

9. The Members can join the AGM 30 minutes before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the
Notice.

10.The Annual Report for the year 2023-2024 including the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 315t March 2024, is being sent by email to those
members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depository
Participant(s), unless any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same
by writing to info @ indussgroup.com mentioning their Folio No./DP ID and Client ID.
The Notice convening the 46t AGM has been uploaded on the website of the
Company.

11.In case of Joint Holders attending the Meeting, the Member whose name appears
as the first holders in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the
Company will be entitled to vote.

12.Members who have cast their vote on Resolution (s) by remote e-Voting prior to
AGM will also be eligible to participate at the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast
their vote on such Resolution(s) again.

13.Mr. Saurabh Basu, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.18686 & CP
No.14347) , Proprietor of S Basu & Associates , Company Secretaries has been
appointed as the Scrutinizer by the Board for providing facility to the Members of
the Company to scrutinize remote e-Voting process in a fair and transparent
manner.

14.The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the Resolutions on
which vofting is to be held, allow voting.

15.The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock
the votes cast and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a
consolidated Scrutinizer’'s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any,
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fo the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who will acknowledge
the receipt of the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

16.The results will be declared within 48 hours of conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on
the Company’s website.

17.Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to
be passed on the date of AGM i.e 25/09/2024.

18.Members are requested to put their signature at the space provided on the
attendance slip annexed 1o the proxy form and handover the slip at the entrance
of the place of the meeting.

19.Members are requested to bring their copies of Annual Report to the meeting.

20.Shareholders desiring any information as regards the accounts are requested to
write to the Company at an early date so as to enable the management to keep
the information ready at the meeting.

21.Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules 2014, the company is pleased to provide the
member the facility to exercise their right o vote at 46" annual general meeting by
electronic means. The Business may be ftransacted through e-voting service
provided by CDSL.

22.Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement
are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company
on all working days, except Saturdays and Sundays, during business hours up to the
date of the Meeting.

23. Members who have noft registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to
register their e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual
Report, Notices, Circulars, efc. from the Company electronically.

24.The Nofice is being sent to all the Shareholders, whose names appear on the
Register of Shareholders as on 16/08/2024 .

INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

All documents in this regard are available for inspection by the Members of the Company
at its Registered Office during the office hours between 11:00 A.M. to 01:00 P.M. on all
working days except Saturday and Sundays upto the date of the Annual General Meeting
and shall also be available at the venue of the Meeting.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

............................ R/o.....

hereby record my/our presence at the 46'h Annual General Meeting of the Company
on 25/09/2024 at 11.00 A.M. at 238/B, A J C Bose Road, 3 Floor, Kolkata -700020.

DPID * :

Folio No. :

Client Id * ;

No. of Shares :

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

Note:

Signature of shareholder(s)/proxy

1. Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall.

. Please complete the Folio / DP ID-Client ID No. and name, sign this Attendance Slip

and hand it over at the Attendance Verification Counter at the ENTRANCE OF THE
MEETING HALL.

. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2023-24 and Notice of the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the
members whose email address is registered with the Company/ Depository
Parficipant unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same.
Members receiving electronic copy and attending the AGM can print copy of this
Attendance Slip.

. Physical copy of the Annual Report for 2023-24 and Notice of the Annual General
Meeting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is sent in the permitted mode(s)
to all members whose email is not registered or have requested for a hard copy.
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PROXY FORM

Name of the member (s): E-mail Id.:

No. of shares held

Registered address: Folio No.

DP ID*.

Client ID*.

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

I/We being the member(s) of the above named Company hereby appoint:

€.No. | Name Address Email address

1 or failing him
2 or failing him
3

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
46t Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 25" September, 2024 at
11.00 AM. at 238/B , A.J.C. Bose Road, Kolkata -700020 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

** | wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

3.N
o.

Resolution

For Against

1

To received ,consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statement of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2024 , together with the reports of the
Board of Directors with all annexure and Auditors
thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Sadhana Agarwal
(DIN: 02239529), who refires by rotation at this Annual
General Meeting and being eligible has offered herself
for re -appointment.

To Re-appoint Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal (DIN: 00322011)
as the Managing Director & CEO

To approve the material related party fransaction of the
company o be entered info with its related parties during
the F.Y. 2024-25 maximum aggregate value of Rs. 30.00
crore.
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** 1t is optional to put a X' in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated
in the Box. If you leave the 'For' or 'Against’ column blank against any or all Resolutions,
your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

Signed this ......... AQY Of oo 2024 A
Revenue
Stamp not
less than

Signature of shareholder..........coooovovovoieoi Re.l

Signature of Proxy holder(s) (1) ..eeeeeeeveeeeor.
Signature of Proxy holder(s) (2).eeewe oo,
Signature of Proxy holder(s) (3)...o.eeeeeeeevooern,

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement ofthe Meeting.

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the company.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than 10% of thetotal share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of
theCompany carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such
person shall not act as a proxy for any otherperson or shareholder.

4. In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of
all the joint holders should be stated.

S. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of
the 46 Annual General Meeting.

6. Please complete all details including details of member(s) in above box before
submission.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on 22/09/2024 at 9.00 A.M (IST) and ends on
24/09/2024 at 5.00 PM (IST). During this period, shareholders of the Company,
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the
cut- off date i.e 18.09.2024, may cast their vote electronically. The e- voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter,

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not
been entitled to vote at the meeting venue
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(inThe  shareholders should log on to the e-voting  website

www.evotingindia.com

(iv) Click on Shareholders

(v) Now Eniry your User ID

a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Eolio Number

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

registered with the Company

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holdings hares in demat form and had logged onto
www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company ,the

any our existing password is to be used.

If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form ¢2

PAN

Enter your 10 digital apha-numeric*PAN issued by Income Tax
Department(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)

*Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two letters
of their Name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.
In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the
applicable Number of O's before the number after the first two
characters of the Name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is
Ramesh Kumar with Sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in
the PAN field.

DOB

Date of Birth in (dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat
account or in the company or folio records in order to login.

Dividend
Bank
Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat
account or in the company records in order to login.

Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If
both the details are not recorded with the depository or company
please enter them emberid/folio number in the Dividend Bank
details field as mentioned in instruction (v).
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(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

(x)  Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now
reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter
their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is
to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-
voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential,

(xi) Click on the EVSN for " Induss Food Products & Equipments Limited” No.
230821048 on which you Choose to vote

(xii) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the
same the opftion "YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that
you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiii) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

(xiv) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote

(xv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print"
option on the Voting page

(xvi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User
ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the
details as prompted by the system.

Note for Non-Individual Shareholders and Custodians

e Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.comand register
themselves as Corporate.

* A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the
entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

e After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

e The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comand on approval of the accounts they would
be able to cast their vote,
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* As canned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF
format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same

e In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com, under help secfion or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

lll. Ofther Instructions

Mr. Saurabh Basu, Practising Company Secretary (CP No. 14347), proprietor of $
Basu & Associates has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting
and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM
venue and the Members attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by
remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the AG M through ballot
paper.

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may
also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote once again.

A Member can opt for only single mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by
Ballot Form. If a Member casts votes by both modes then voting done through e-
voting shall prevail and vote by Ballot shall be treated as invalid. Members who
have cast their votes by e-voting prior to the Meeting may also attend the
Meeting; however those Members are not entitled to cast their vote again in the
Meeting.

Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the
name of the Members after closure of business hours of 18.09.2024(cut-off date).
Only those Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Beneficial
Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date will be entitled to
cast their votes by remote e-voting as well as avail the facility of e- voting at the
AGM venue. A person who is not a Member on the cut-off date should accordingly
treat this Notice as for information purposes only.

The remote e-voting period commences on 22/09/2024 at 9.00AM. (IST) and ends
on 24/09/2024 at 5.00 P.M.{ IST), after which remote e-voting will be blocked by
CDSL. During this period members of the Company, holding shares as on the cut-off
date may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the
member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

If you are already registered with CDSL for remote e-voting then you can use your
existing user ID and password/PIN for casting your vote.
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Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the
Company after dispatch of the Notice of AGM and holding shares as of the cut-off
dafe i.e after closure of business hours of 18/09/2024, may cast their votes
electronically through remote e-voting by obtaining the login ID and password by
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

However, if you are already registered with CDSL for remote-voting then you can
use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your
password, you can reset your password by using "Forgot User Details/Password"
option available onwww.evoftingindia.com.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of beneficial owners maintained
by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility
of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper, if not

participated th rough remote e-voting.

At the Annual General Meeting, at the end of the discussion of the resolutions on
which voting is to be held, the Chairman shall, with the assistance of the
Scrutinizer, allow voting by means of ballot paper for all those Members who are
present but have not cast their vote electronically.

The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first
count the votes cast at the meeting and the re after unblock the votes cast
through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the
employment of the Company and shall make, not later than 48 hours of the
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast
in favour or against, if any ,to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in
writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting
forthwith. The resolution will be deemed to have been passed on the AGM date
subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the Resolution(s).

Route Map to the venue of AGM:
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and in terms of
Regulation 36 of the SEBI LODR, the following explanatory statement sets out all
material facts relating to business mentioned under Item Nos.2 of the accompanying

iTEM NO.2

To appoint as Director Mrs. Sadhana Agarwal (DIN: 02239529), who retires by rotation

Details of Director seeking re-appointment in forthcoming Annual General Meeting (In
pursuance of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Name Mrs. sadhana Agarwal
DIN 02239529
Age 65 Years

Qualification

B.SC (Business Studies Diploma) (UK)

Experience (including expertise in specific
functional area) /
Brief Resume

27 Years of experience in sales , marketing
and general management

Date of first appointment on the Board 20/11/2014
Directorships held in other public N.A
companies

Memberships/ Chairmanships of N.A
committees of other companies

Number of Equity Shares held in the N.A

Company

Relationship between Directors and other
KMPs inter-se

Wife of Executive Director

Number of meetings of the Board
attended during the last Financial Year

Five(05) Board Meetings attend in the last
Financial Year

Remuneration last drawn

N.A

Remuneration proposed to be paid

N.A

Terms and conditions of Appointment/ Re-
appointment

She is a non-executive director and she is
getting sitting fees and out of pocket
expenses for attending meeting.

TEM NO: 3

The Company had Re-appointed Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal (DIN: 00322011) as
Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 01.10.2021
upto 30.09.2024. The similar approval is sought from the shareholders to approve the
re-appointment of Mr. Aggarwal for a period of one and half (1.5)years w.e.f.
01/10/2024 to 31/08/2026 and also to authorise the Board of Directors of the
Company to approve/revise from time to time the remuneration to be paid to Mr.
Shanti Swarup Aggarwal on the recommendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.
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During 2023-2024 Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal attended all the five (No. of
meetings)Meetings of the Board of Directors. He is a Director of the following Companies —

1. INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
2. TIVOLI COURT SERVICES
4. INDUSS RICE ACCESSORIES PRIVATE LIMITED

His current term of appointment as the Managing Director of the Company to be expired
on 30.09.2024. Considering his knowledge of various aspects relating to the Company's
affairs and long business experience, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that for
smooth and efficient running of the business, the services of Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal
should be available to the Company for a further period of 1.5 (One and half) years with
effect from 01.10.2024 to 31.08.2026.

In terms of the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, and
as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in their meeting held
on 14/08/2024, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 23/08/2024 re-appointed him,
subject to the approval of Members, as Managing Director of the Company for a further
period of 1.5 (One and half) years with effect from 01.10.2024 to 31.08.2026.

Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal shall be liable to refire by rotation in accordance with
Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and there will be no break in his office as
Managing Director in case he is re-appointed by the shareholders.

Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal’'s re-appointment as Managing Director may be
terminated by either party by giving 3 (three) months' written notice provided that the
Company shall have the option to pay salary in lieu of notice for the full period of 3
months or for such period by which such nofice falls short of 3 months.

The appointment and remuneration of Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal is in compliance
with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, the Rules made thereunder read with Schedule
V of the Act and other relevant and applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and the
Articles of Association of the Company. He is not disqualified from being appointed as
Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and also eligible to act as Managing
Director of the Company pursuant to applicable provisions of the Act. The Company
has received his consent to act as Managing Director of the Company.

The Notice read with Explanatory Statement should be considered as written
Memorandum setting out the terms of re-appointment and remuneration of Mr. Shanti
Swarup Aggarwal as Managing Director as required under Section 190 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal is related to Mr. Gaurav Khemani and Mrs. Sadhana
Aggarwal any Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. Save and except
the above, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and/or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise
in the said Resolution.

Mr Shanti Swarup Aggarwal is over 70 years of age and accordingly in terms of the
orovisions of Sections 196, 197, the Rules made thereunder read with Schedule V of the
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Act and other relevant and applicable provisions, if any, of the Act , the Company is
required to obtain Shareholders’ approval by way of a Special Resolution for re-
appointment of Mr Aggarwal as Managing Director in order to continue to benefit
from high reservoir of his experience , expertise , wisdom and insights. It would be
beneficial to the interest of the Company to avail further services of Mr Aggarwal as
Managing Director. Hence, Shareholders’ approval is hereby sought for the re-
appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal as Managing
Director of the Company for a period of 1.5 (One and half) years effective from
01.10.2024 to 31.08.2026. The Board recommends the Resolution as set out under
_business item no 3 in the notice of this meeting for approval of the Members by means
of a Special Resolution.

The main terms and conditions for the re-appointment of Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal as
Managing Director (MD), are as follows:

I. Period - From 01.10.2024 to 31.08.2026.
1.

A. Remuneration

a) Salary:

Salary of Rs 12,00,000/- per month; The annual increments which will be effective 1st April
each year, will be decided by the Board based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (hereinafter called the “NRC") and will be
performance-based and take into account the Company's performance as well.

b) Benefits, Perquisites & Allowances:

Details of Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances are as follows:

(i) Rent-free residential accommodation (furnished or otherwise) with the Company
bearing the cost of repairs, maintenance, society charges and utilities (e.g. gas, electricity
and water charges) for the said accommodation OR House Rent and Maintenance
Allowance (in case residential accommodation is not provided by the Company) of 85%
of Salary per annum.

(i) Reimbursement of hospitalisation and major medical expenses incurred as per Rules of
the Company (this includes mediclaim insurance premium).

(iii) Car facility as per Rules of the Company.
(iv) Telecommunication facility as per Rules of the Company.
(v) Housing loan facility as per Rules of the Company.

(vi) Contribution fo Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund and Gratuity as
per the Rules of the Company.

(vii) Leave and encashment of unavailed leave which will be paid at the end of the
tenure, as per the Rules of the Company.

c) Performance Linked Bonus:

In addition to the Salary, Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances, Mr. Shanti Swarup
Aggarwal may be paid such remuneration by way of annual performance linked bonus.
This performance linked bonus would be payable subject to the achievement of certain
performance criteria and such other parameters as may be considered appropriate from
time fo time by the Board. An indicative list of factors that may be considered for
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determination of the extent of the Performance Linked Bonus by the Board (supported by
the NRC) are:
e Company performance on certain defined qualitative and quantitative
parameters as may be decided by the Board from time to time,
* Industry benchmarks of remuneration,
e Performance of the individual.

B. Minimum Remuneration

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year
during the currency of the tenure of Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal the Company has no
profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration, for a period of 1.5
years, by way of Salary, Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances and Performance linked
bonus as specified above, subject to further approvals as required under Schedule V of
the Act, or any modification(s) thereto.

Ill. Nature of Duties

The MD shall devote his whole time and attention to the business of the Company and
carry out such duties as may be entrusted to him by the Board from time to time and
separately communicated to him and such powers as may be assigned to him, subject to
superinfendence, control and directions of the Board in connection with and in the best
interests of the business of the Company and the business of any one or more of ifs
associated companies and/or subsidiaries, including performing duties as assigned by the
Board from time to time by serving on the boards of such associated companies and/or
subsidiaries or any other executive body or any committee of such a company.

The Particulars of the information, pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V, Part I, Section
Il, clause (A) of the Act are as under:

1. General information:

a) Nature of Industry: Parboiling and Drying Equipments Industry
b) Date or expected date of commencement of Commercial Production: Not applicable
(Company is an existing company).

c) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per
project approved by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus: Not Applicable

d) Financial performance based on given indicators:

Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(Rs. In Crs) (Rs. In Crs)
Net Sales / Income from Business 125.55 113.48
Operations
Other Income 3.71 1.92
Total Income 129.26 115.40
Total Expenditure excluding 116.11 107.52
Depreciation
Profit before Depreciation 13.15 7.88
Less: Depreciation 0.42 0.36
Profit after Depreciation 12.73 7.52
Less: Provision for Taxation 3.59 2.31
Net Profit after Tax 9.14 5.21
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e) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any: Not Applicable

2. Information about the appointee:
a) Background details:

Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal is a graduate in Commerce from St. Xavier college
Calcutta University , one of premier institution in the Country .

L

His rich experience in the Rice Mills industry, both in India and overseas, has endowed
him with deep insight and expertise on the industry. Under the leadership of Mr. Shanti
Swarup Aggarwal, the Company has witnessed significant growth, both in terms of
revenue and profits.

b) Past remuneration:

Period Total Rs.(p.a)

01.10.2021-30.09.2024 84,00,000

c) Recognition or awards:

d) Job profile and his suitability:

His current term of appointment as a Managing Director of the Company will expire
on 30.09.2024 considering his knowledge of various aspects relating to the Company’s
affairs and long business experience, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that for
smooth and efficient running of the business, the services of Mr. Shanti Swarup
Aggarwal should be available to the Company.

e) Remuneration proposed: As mentioned above

f) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company,
profile of the position and person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be
with respect to the country of his origin):

At the best of our knowledge , there is no such company in this industry is available in
this region .So exact comparative analysis is not available.

Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal has vast experience in Management. Mr. Aggarwal has
rich experience of handling various areas of business and is well known in retail
industry. Mr. Aggarwal has begun a lot of new initiatives in the Company since he
joined as Managing Director. His respective skill sets and experience placed him in a
correspondingly indispensable position in the Company. Considering the general
industry and the specific company profile the proposed remuneration is in line with the
industry levels and that of comparatively placed Companies in India.

g) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with
the managerial personnel, if any: Mr Aggarwal is the promoter of the Company with
the holding of 303550 No of shares as Individual Category and related to other Non-
Executive Directors and shareholders in the Promoter Group.

3. Other information:
a) Reasons of loss or inadequate profits:
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The Company is a profit making company.
b) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:

The Company has started to acquisition of new clients and so that fop line will be
improved in future.

<) Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:

We hope by taking various cost reduction manner , expand client base and getting
raw material at economic rate , the bottom line of the Company will be improved .

4. Disclosures

The following disclosures shall be mentioned in the Board of Director’s report under the
heading "Corporate Governance”, if any, attached to the Financial statement:

(i) all elements of remuneration package such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock
options, pension, etc., of all the directors;

(i) details of fixed component. and performance linked incentives along with the
performance criteria;

(iii) service contracts, notice period, severance fees: and

(iv) stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at a discount
as well as the period over which accrued and over which exercisable.

S. Brief Details of Mr Shanti Swarup Aggarwal pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India

Name Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal

DIN 00322011

Age 73 Years

Qualification B.Com

Experience (including expertise in specific | More than 53 Years of experience in

functional area) / sales , marketing and general

Brief Resume management.

Date of first appointment on the Board 26/05/1987

Directorships held in other public NIL

companies

Memberships/ Chairmanships of N.A

committees of other companies

Number of Equity Shares held in the 303550

company

Relationship between Directors and other | Related to other two Non-Executive

KMPs inter-se Director of the Company

Number of meetings of the Board All five Board Meeting attend in the last

attended during the last Financial Year Financial Year

Remuneration last drawn N.A

Remuneration proposed to be paid N.A

Terms and conditions of Appointment/ Re- | He is an executive directors and he is

dppointment getting remuneration and other benefits
as approved by Shareholders.
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ITEM NO: 3

Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with rules 15 and 16 of
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules 2014 prescribe certain
procedure for approval of material related party transactions by members. Every
related party transaction which is material has to be approved by the
shareholders by passing a special resolution and all related parties shall not be
allowed to vote on such resolutions.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting proposed to pass a blanket
resolution by the shareholders of the Company under section 188 of Companies
Act,2013 , to enable the Company to enter into any contracts(s) /Agreement(s)
/Transaction(s) in the form of borrowings/availing of additional loans and
advances/ Investment(s),/guarantee(s) /subscription(s) in securities as may be
required from time to time by the Company during the Financial Year 2024-2025,
with ifs Related Parties i.e. Subsidiary Companies and /or Associate and /or
Group Companies where the Promoters/Directors are the interested parties within
the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act,2013 and or individually with
its  Directors/Promoters/Shareholders where the total value of transactions
exceeds ten percent Annual Consolidated Turnover of the listed entity or such
other limit as may be specified under the SEBI Listing Regulations or any
amendment thereof.

The Promoter, Promoter Director of the Company and their relatives are interested
or concerned in this resolution.

The Board recommends the Special resolution for approval by the members of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T DAY OF MARCH, 2024

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to submit this 46" Annual Report of the Company together with
Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 315 March, 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Company's financial performances for the year under review along with previous year' figures
cre provided hereunder:

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended

31.03.2024 (Rs. In Thousand) | 31.03.2023 (Rs. In Thousand)

Net Sales / Income from 12,55,454.55 11,34,835.35

Business Operations

Other Income 37,133.45 19.158.00

Total Income 12,92,588.01 11,53,993.35

Tolal Expendilure 11,61,027.40 10,75.137.61

| excluding Depreciation

Profit before Depreciation 1,31,560.60 78,855.73

Less: Depreciation 4,280.07 3,684.60

Profit after Depreciation 1,27,280.53 7517113

Less: Provision for

Taxation 35,891.02 23.066.44

Net Profit after Tax ?1,389.52 52,104.469

Balance Carried fo

Balance Sheet 71,389.52 52,104.49

Earnings per share (Rs. In 107.52 61.30

actuals)

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING DURING THE YEAR/ STATE
CF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:

During the financial year 2023-24 the sale increased in your Company from Rs. 11,348.35 lacs in
financial year 2022-23 to Rs. 12.554.55 Lacs in 2023-24. This is mainly due to the Company

appoinied Regional Sales Teams in Central , South and East India. Your Company has appointed
15 new Agents in South and Central India.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS MADE IN THIS INDUSTRY —

Your Company has with confinuous research developed and commissioned a Maize Drier Unit in
Punjab. The Government of India is encouraging mixing of ethanol from Maize with Petrol.
Demand for Maize Driers will increase tremendously.

Your Company has developed many automatic processes for drying . steam control, moisture
control, 100% automatic steam rice plants.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
The State Governments are encouraging new Rice Mils to process the procured paddy ot

profitable rates. Hence, number of new rice mills / expansion/ automation are coming up all over
the Country. The current order position is healthy and we expect to sell Rs. 170 Crores in 2024-25.
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SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Your Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate companies. Accordingly,
provision of section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to consolidation of accounts are
not applicable to the Company.

DIVIDEND

In view of further strengthening the financial position of the Company and fo enhance ifs reserve
base, no Dividend is recommended for the year.

ANNUAL RETURN:

In terms of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Refurn of the Company is available on
the website of the Company ct the website of the Company at www.indussgroup.net under the
link hﬂp:{/www.indussgroup.nef/inversfor.php.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Information pursuant to Section 134 (3) (j) of the Companies Act, 2013 is that the Company has
made a profit before tax during the current year of Rs 1272.81 lacs.

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the general reserve.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY AFEECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company is committed to good corporate governance practices. The Report on Corporate
Governance, as stipulated under Listing Regulations Jforms an integral part of this Annual Report.
The requisite certificate from M/s S Basu & Associates., Practising Company Secretaries, is
attached to the Report on Corporate Govemance, which forms a part of this Annual Report.
(Please refer Annexure — A)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD & A

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, os stipulated under
the Listing Regulations, is presented in @ seclion forming part of this Annual Report. For the sake of
brevity, the items covered in this Report are not repeated in the Management Discussion and
Analysis Report and also covers the operations reflecting the nature of our business. [Please refer
Annexure — B)

DIKECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the year under review, the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial
Person did not change.
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Ms. Sadhana Agarwal (DIN: 02239529), Director is due 10 retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM
and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. Your Board recommends for re-appointment
for Ms. Sadhana Agarwal as @ Director of the Company, ligble to relire by rotation.

Based on the recommendation of the Nominafion and Remuneration Committee at its meeting
held on 14.08.2024 the Board of Directors of the Company, at the meeting held on 23.08.2024 had
re-appointed M. shanfi Swarup Agarwal (DIN: 00322011)as the Managing Director of the
Company for a period of 23 months w.e.f 01.10.2024 upto 31.08.2026, and the remuneration os
determined by the Board will be payable fo him even in the event of loss or inadequacy of profif,
his reappointment and remuneration were subject to approval by the shareholders by way of a
Special Resolution at the ensuing General Meeting of the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors of your Company at present are disqualified under sub- section (2) of
section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Your Company’s Board, at oresent comprises of Five |5) Directors and following KMPs:

St No " Name Designation q
1 Mr. Nandan Kumar Basu Chairman & Non - Executive Independent
Director Y
2 Mr. Tapan Kumar Chakraborty Non - Executive Independent Director
3 Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal CEO & Managing Director
4 = Ms. Sadhana Agarwal Non — Executive Director
5 Mr. Gaurav Khemani Non — Executive Director
6 | Mr. swapan Kumar Majumder Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
]7 | Mr. Narendra Narayan Mondal Company Secretary (CS) |

Further, your Company is regular in the payment of sitfing fees to its Non-Executive Independent
Directors.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The policy on Directors’  remuneration is avaiable on the website of the
Compony,www.indussqroum.nei

The remuneration pcid fo the Directors is as per the lemms laid out in the said policy.

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL
DIRECTORS

The Board has put in place a mechanism for evaluation of its own performance and performance
of its Committees and individual Directors. The evaluation of the Board, Committees, Directors and
Chairman of the Board was conducted based on the evaluation parameters, such as Board
composifion and sfruciure, effectiveness of the Board, participation at meetings, domain
knowledge, awareness and observance of governance, etc. For further details, please refer to the
Report on Corporate Governance, which forms a part of this Annual Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

pursuant to Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulations 16(1) (o) and 25(8) of the Listing Regulations
and there is no change in the status of their Independence and have confirmed that they are nof
aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may pe reasonably anticipated that could
impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties.
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All the Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations that:

a. they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under the Act and the Listing Regulations
and

b. they have registered their names in the Independent Directors’ Databank.

EAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME

The Company has put in place an induction and familiarization programme for all its Directors
including the Independent Directors. The familiarization programme for Independent Directors in
terms of provisions of Regulation 46(2)(i) of the Listing Regulations is uploaded on the website of
the Company

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the year under review 5(Five) meetings were held on the following dates:
15.05.2023, 14.08.2023, 10.11.2023, 12.02.2024 & 18.03.2024.

The infervening gaps between the meetings were within the period prescribed under section
173(1) under the Companigs Act, 2013,

Mr. Nandan Kumar Basu, Mr. Shantfi Swarup Aggarwal, Smt, Sadhana Agarwal, Mr. Tapan Kumar
Chakraborty & Mr. Gaurav Khemani, Directors of the Company, attended the last Annual General
Meeting (AGM) which was held on 25.09.2023

Name of Attendance at the Board Meetings held on

Director 15052023 | 14.08.2023 | 10.11.2023 12.02.2024 |18.03.2024
Mr. Shanti Swarup 4 v v v v
Aggarwal

smt. Sadhana Agarwal v v v v v
Mr. Nandan Kumar v v v v

Basy

Mr.  Topan  Kumar v v v v v
Chakraborty

Mr. Gaurav Khemani v v v v v

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The following are the statutory Committees constituted by the Board and they function according
to their respective roles and defined scope:

1.Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3.Stakeholders Relationship Committee

4.Risk Management Commitiee

5.Corporate Socicl Responsibility Committee

Details of composilion, terms of reference and number of meetings held for respective
Committees are given in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms a part of this Annuall
Report. Further, during the year under review, all recommendations made by the Audif
Committee have been accepted by the Board. (Please refer Annexure = A
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VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Board has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism under Regulation 22 of the SEBI
Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements (LODR) Regulations, 2015 along with section 177(?)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meeting of Boards and its
powers) Rules, 2014. This policy is formulated fo provide opportunity to all the employees o access
in good faith, fo the Audit Committee of the Company in Case they observe any unethical and

improper praclice or behaviour or wrongful conduct in the Company and also to prohibit
managerial personnel from taking any adverse personnel action against such employee.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of
the Revised Secretarial standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (5s-1) and General
Meetings (55-2) issued by the Insfitute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The Company is abiding by the provisions referred fo in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 relating to the particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by
the Company with ifs related parties. During the year, the Company hod not entered info any
contract / arangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered material,
affecting the best interest of the Company or its shareholders.

Details confract / arrangement / transaction with related parties in Annexure -C.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The Company has not borrowed any amount in excess of the limit stipulated under section 180(1)
(¢} and given any loan, guarantees or made any investments exceeding the 60% of its paid up
share capital, free reserve and securities premium account or one hundred per cent of ils free
reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more, as prescribed in Secfion 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES:

Your Directors draw aftention of the members that as per amended provisions of Sec 135 of the
Companies Act,2013 along with applicable regulations, the Company had statutory requirement
for spending in CSR activities Rs. 6,31,960/- during F.Y. 2023-24 in the stipulated manner s

prescribed therein. However, your company has already made expenses of Rs.13,10,750/- CSR
activities as per Annexure -G.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Audit &
Auditors) Rules, 2014, K.R. SRIRAM & CO, Chartered Accountants [Firm Regn. No.: 323146E ). have
been appointed till conclusion of the 48h AGM of the Company subject to fulfil their eligibility
norms etc .

M/s. KR. SRIRAM & CO, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No323146E.:),being eligible, offer
themselves for appointment as the Auditors of the Company. They have confirmed their eligibility
to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under the Act
and that they are not disqualified from being appointed as the Auditors of the Company.
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There is no qualification or adverse remark in Auditors’ Report .

But in their report , they have mentioned an incident of fraud committed by an employee causing
loss to the company Rs. 71,85,206/-, out of which Rs. 7,45,000/- has been recovered and for the
balance, legal and other action for recovery on behalf of the company is going on.

The Board of Directors has noted the facts.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remunerafion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Board, the Company has duly appointed M/s. S
Basu & Associates, Company secretaries, o undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit report for the financial year 2023-24 in Form MR-3 is annexed as Annexure — D
and is its integral part.

COST AUDIT AND MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

According fo the information and explanations given to us, the Ceniral Govemment has not
specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for
the products of the Company.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE:

The Company is listed in The Calcutta Stock Exchange Lid. The Company is regular in timely
remitting the listing fees fo ihe said stock Exchange in full.

PRéVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading with a view to
regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. All
members of Board Directfors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the
Code.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Directors' Responsibility siatement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013, fo the best of their knowledge and belief, shall state that-

(@) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accournting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures:

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and esfimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a frue and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the

profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) The directors had icken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other iregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on @ going concermn basis;
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[e) The directors has laid down internal financial controls to be followed by company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively: and

(f] The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ENVIORNMENT AND SAFETY:

The Company is conscious about the importance of clean & safe environment, However, fhe
operation of the Company are such fhat it does not materially horm the environmeni. The
Company is presently operating under “ORANGE" category certificate from Pollution Conftrol
Board, West Bengal, Nevertheless, your Company ensures safety of all concerned, compliances of
environmental regulations and prevention of wastage of natural resources.

The Factory premises of the Company are adequately equipped with firefighting equipment’s
and multi peint emergency exifs. The Company from time to fime provides 1o its workers, the
fraining and mock drills facililies so as to prepare them for any unwanted accidents.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
QUIGO:

In Compliance of Section 134 (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, details relafing 1o Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning
and Outgo are annexed hereto as Annexure - E and forms a part of this report.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

Your Company believes in developing long ferm relationships with all our employees on an
ongoing basis. Industrial relations at all the manufacturing units of your Company have been
harmonicus and peaceful with active involvement of the employees in the collective bargaining
process. Your Company has also encouraged wholehearted participation of the employee's and
union in improving productivity as well as quality of its products.

As on March 31,2024, there were 100 permanent employees on the rolls of your Company During
the financial year 2023-24, the management of your Company did not face any major industrial
Disputes and that the operations of the Company remained uninterrupted and peaceful
throughout the year.

HUMAN RESOURCES:
Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets.

The Company takes pride in the commitment, competence and dedication exhibited by ifs
employees in all areas of business.

Your Company is confinuously committed to nurturing, enhancing, retaining and development of
talent on an ongoing basis through superior Learning & COrganizational Development. A number of
programs that provide focused people attention are currently underway. Your Company thrust is
on the promotion of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement. Your Company
stresses on lesser Employee Turnover and higher Employee Retention.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of
the Board and all employees in the course of day fo day business operations of the company. The
Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed
by the Direclors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on
matters relafing to integrity in the work place, in business practices and in dealing with
stakeholders. All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed
compliance with the Code.
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CONFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE:

In terms of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 (as amended) and Rules framed thereunder, your Company has duly adopted a Policy
and has also complied with fhe provisions relating to the constitution of Infernal Complaints
Committee (ICC).

No. complaint received during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 in terms of the scid Act
and Rules framed thereunder.

STATUTORY INFORMATION:

1. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE

The Company did not have any employee during the financial year, whose disclosures under
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 201 3, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial personnel] Rules, 2014 are required.

2. THE RATIO OF THE REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN EMPLOYEE'S

The ratio of the remunerafion paid to the Directors and to that of the median employee of the
Company is as under:

During the Financial Year 2023-24. a salary of Rs. 7,00,000/- per month was paid to $i Shanti
Swarup Aggarwal, CEO & Managing Director of the Company for the year. Whereaos,
remuneration paid to the Median Employee is Rs 33,500/-p.m. Thus, the ratio between themis 21:1.

3. ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of Issue of shares
(including ESOP and sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme as no
transactions on these items occurred and/or relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 were
not applicable to the Company during the year under review.

4. ACCEPTANCE OF DEPOSITS BY COMPANY

The Company has not accepied / renewed any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read wilh the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as such
no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.

5. VOLUNTARY REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR BOARD'S REPORT

No significant revision of Financial Statements or Board Report was made in respect of any of the
three preceding financial years.

4. SECTION 134(3] (ca) — FINANCIAL STATEMENT, BOARD'S REPORT, ETC

As per section 134(3) (ca) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2015 duly nofified on 29% May,
2015, your directors regret fo inform that an incident of fraud on the company was committed by
an employee fo the tune of Rs. 71,85,206/- out of which Rs. 7,45,000/- has been recovered and for
the balance, legal and oiher action for recovery on behalf of the company is in progress.
However, the company has taken remedial action to tighten its confrol mechanism for
safeguarding and avoiding recurrence of such instances in future. Apart from the above, no other
incidence of fraud was reported by auditors which are reportable to the Central Government
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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OTHER DISCLOSURE:

1. Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following
items as no transactions on these items occurred and/or relevant provisions of fhe
Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company during the year under review:

a. Change in the nature of business.

b. Receiving of any remuneration or commission by the Managing Director of the
Company from its holding company.
The Company does not have any subsidiary company.

¢. During the financial year the Company has not allotted any class of shares.

2 ORDERS WERE PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

in terms of the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no
unclaimed / unpaid dividend amount required fo be transferred during the year to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund established by Central Govermment.

No application has been filed for corporate insolvency resolution process against your
Company by any financial creditor or operational creditor or your Company itself under
Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2014 before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT).

There are no significant and material orders passed by any regulatory Autharity or courts or
ibunals that would impact the going concem status of the Company and ifs future
operation.

INVESTOR RELATIONS:

Your Company always endeavours to keep the time of response to shareholders request /
grievance at the minimum. Priority is accorded to address all the issues raised by the sharehaolders
and provide them a satisfactory reply at the eariest possible time.

APPRECIATION
The Directors wish 1o place on record their deep thanks and gratitude to;

a) The Cenfral and the State Government as well as their respective Departments and
Development Authorities connected with the business of the Company, the Bankers of the
Company as well as other Institutions for their co-operation and confinued support.

b) The Shareholders, Suppliers and the Contractors for the frust and confidence reposed in the
company and to the Customers for their valued patronage.

¢) The Board clso fakes this opporfunity to express is sincere appreciation for the efforts put in by
the officers and employees at all levels in achieving the results and hopes that they will
continue their sincere and dedicated endeavour towards attainment of better working results
during the current year.

INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LTD
Eor and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

1A fgtonnt |

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23.08.2024

shanti Swarup Aggarwal Sadhana Agarwal
Managing Director & CEO Director
DIN: 032201 1 DIN: 02239529

Page90f43



Annexure -A

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LID philosophy of Corporate Governance is built on @
foundation of sound business athics, faimess, and frust in dealing with all stakenholders. The
company is committed to ensure high standards of fransparency and accountability in all its
activities. The best management practices and high levels of integrity in decision making are
followed to ensure long term wedalih generation and areation of value for all the stakeholders. The
company follows all the principles of corporate governance in its true spirt and at all fimes. As o
responsible corporate cifizen, your company had established system fo encourage and recognize
employee parficipation and training, learning and personal growth. The effectively leads fo
conservafion of energy. promoting safety at work, health of its employees and of the
neighbouring communily etc. These actions have become an integral part of your Company’s
operating process.

Date of Report

The information provided in this Report on Corporate Governance for the purpose of unanimity is
as on March 31, 2024. This Report is updated as on ihe date of the Report wherever applicable.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A) Composition & Category of Directors

The Company has an opfimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors including
woman directors. As on 315 March, 2024, the Company had 5 (five) directors and the composition
of the Board of Directors is given in the table below. The chairman of the Board is a Non —
Executive Independent Director and 4/5" of the Board, for the time being, comprises of Non —
Executive Directors. The Independent Directors presently constifutes of 2/5h of the Board as on 31%
March, 2024. The company has one woman director on the Board who hold office as a Non-
Executive Directors. The compoasition of the Board is in conformity with the listing agreement. The

day-to-day management of the company was carried on by the Execulive Director of the
company.

]7 Category No of Director % of total stiength of the Board |
Non- Executive, Non 2 40
Independent Director
Managing & Executive | 20
Director
Non-Executive Independent 2 40
Director
| Total 5 100 J

(B) Details of aitendance of each Director at Board Meeting and at the last year's Annual
General Meeting with particulars of other Directorships and Chairman/ Membership of Board
Committees showing the position as at 31 March,2024 are given in the following table:
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Name of DIN Category | Attendance at Directorship and
Director chairman/Membership of board
committees in other Indian Public
Companies
Board Last Director | Commiitee Committee
meetings AGM Member Chairman
Mr.Nandan 02449375 | NED & | All YES NIL NA NA
Kumar Basu Meetings
Mr. Tapan 06676727 | NED & All YES NIL NA NA
Kumar Meetings
Chakraborty
Mr. Shanti 00322011 | C&ED All YES NIL NIL NIL
Swarup Meetings
Aggarwal
Smt.Sadhana | 02239529 NED All YES NIL NA NA
Agorwal Meetings
Mr. Gauray 07435545 | NED All YES NIL NIL NIL
Khemani Meetings

c: Chairman; NED: Non-Execufive Director: I: Independent Director; ED: Executive Director

All independent directors possess the requisite qudlificafions and are very experienced in their
own fields. All Directors Except the chairman and managing director, joint managing director and
nominee director are licble to refire by rotation. None of the directors are members of more than
ten committees or chairman of more than five commitiees in public limited companies in which
they are directors. Necessary disclosures have been obtained from all the direcfors regarding their
directorship and have been taken on record by the Board.

Notes:

1. Mo director is a member of more than 10 Board Committees or Chairman of more than 05
Board Committees across all public limited companies where he/she is director. Further no
independent Director serves as independent director in more than 07 listed companies.

9 None of the directors hold office of a director in more fhan 20 companies including 10 public
companies and private companies that are either holding or subsidiary of public company.

3. Further, none of the directors on Board serves as an independent director of more than 07 listed
entifies across all entities in which he is a director.

4. The company has received declarations on criteria of independence ds prescribed in Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulafions from the
Directors of the Company who have been classified as independent director as on 315t March,
2024.

(C). Number of Board Meetings and dates on which held

During the yeadr under review Five(5) Meetings were held on 15.05.2023,14.08.2023, 10.11.2023,
12.02.2024 and 18.03.2024.
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The maximum fime gap between two Board meetings was less than 120 days. Minutes of the
meeting of all Board and committees are circulated to all Directors.

(D). Familiarisation programme for independent Directors

The Independent Director have been familiaised with the companies, their roles and
responsibilities in the company. nature of the industry in which the company operafes, business
model of the company etc. During 2023-24, Independent Directors were made acquainted with
various aspects of the company's operational developmenfs.

(E). Code of Conduct

Consistent with its values and beliefs the company has formulated and adopted a Code of
Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Executives (“the Code”) which is applicable to
the Board of Directors and senior management team (one level below the Board of Directors)
incluging all functional heads of the company.

The Code of Conduct defines for the Management expects of ifs businesses and people
regardless of ifs location or the background. It is aligned with our values, group standards and
legal requirements, and clarifies the ethics and compliance expectation for everyone who waorks
with the company. The Code reflects a value-baosed approach, where rules are not stated
explicitly and day- to-day business decisions would continue to be guided by our values. The
Code covers the company’s commitment to Corporate social Responsibility and sustainable
development, concern for occupational health, safety and environment, a gender friendly
workplace, fransparency and legal compliance. The Code requires Directors and Employees to
act rationally honestly, fairy, ethically, and with integrity, conduct themselves in professional,
courteous and respectful manner. The Board members and senior management personnel have
affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct as on 313t March, 2024 and @ declaration to
that effect signed by the Managing Director and CEO is published in this Annual Report.

(F). Formal Letter of appointment to the Independent Directors

The Company had issued tarmal letters of appointment to all the Independent Directors on their
appointment explaining inter-alia, their roles, responsibilities, code of conduct, functions and
duties as directors of the companies.

(G). Separate Meeting of Independent Direciors

During the financial year 2023-24, the independent Directors met separately once without the
presence of Non independent directors and members of the management in compliance with
regulation 25(3) of Listing Regulations and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 on 12.02.2024.
in the said meeting, the independent director inter-alia consider the following:

.. review of performance of Non Independent dirsctor and the board as a whole;

Il Review of performance of the chairman of the company, taking into account the views of
executive director and Non-Executive director;

lll. Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company
management and the Board of Directors

IV. Factors that is necessary for Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.
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3. Audit Committee

a. Brief description of terms of reference
The terms cf reference of Audit Committee are stipulated by fthe Board of Directors, in
accordance with the section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements (LODR) Regulations, 2015
and as per statutory guidelines that ‘nter alia includes overseeing financial reporting processes,
reviewing Quarferly, Half yearly and Annudl financial results, acequacy of internal financial confrol
systems, internal audit functions, discussions with the auditors about the scope of audit including
the observations of the quditors and discussion wiih internal auditors on any significant findings
and adlso to investigate any activity within ifs terms of reference and fo seek any information it
requires from any employees and lo secure the aftendance of outsiders with relevant experience

and expertise, where considered necessary.
18.03.24

Director

\ 15.05.23 ) 14.08.23 \ 10.11.23
Mr.Nandan

& [ % v v v
Kumar Basu | Executive
(Chairman) Independent
Direcior
Mr.Shanfi Executive v v o £ v
Swarup Director
Aggarwal
4

M. Tapan | Non = v v v | v

Non

Kumar Executive
Chakraborty Independent
Director

Composition, Meetings and Aftendance

The Audit Committee of the Board presently consist of three Directors, Mr. Nandan Kumar Basu as
Chairman, Mr. Tapan Kumar Chakraborty and Mr. Shanti swarup Aggarwal. During the financial
year 2023-24. the committee duly met five(5) fimes on 15.05.2023, 14.08.2023, 10.11 2023,
12.02.2024 and 18.03.2024.

All the members of the Audif Committee are financially literate as defined in
Regulatfion 18 (1) (c] of the Listing Regulations and are experts in their respective fields.

The composition of Audit Commiftee and the details of the Members participation of the
Meetings of the Commitiee is exhibited as under :

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The intemal financial control system and actual performance is closely reviewed on quarterly and
yearly basis. The Company has prominent and eligible members in qudit Committee to act and
look after the internal control measure and their adherence at regular interval. lts infemal control
system and procedure are commensurate with the size of the operation and are adeqguate to
ensure safeguarding its resources against loss, unauthorized use or disposifion and also to ensure
that all fransactions are authorized, recorded and reported comrectly.
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4, NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
a. Brief description of terms of reference:

[A)  appointment of the directors, and key managerial personnel of the Company; and

(B) Fixation of the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees of the Company.

b. Composition of committee and attendance of members

The Board appoinfed Mr. Tapan Kumar Chakraborty as Chairman of the Nomination And
Remunerafion Committee with effect from 30.04.2019 in line with Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing
Obligation and Disclosures requirements (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 .Mr. Nandan Kumar Basu and smt. Sadnana Agarwal are the other
members in the commiftee. The Nomination and Remuneration Commiftee meet once during
2023-24 on 15.05.2023.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at March, 2024 along with
details of the Members parficipation at the Meetings of the Committee is as under:

Name of Director Calegory Attendance at the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee Meetings
held on 15.05.2023

Mr. Tapan Kumar Non — Executive v

Chakraborly — (Chairman) Independent Director

Mr. Nandan Kumar Basu Non — Executive v J
independent Director

Smi. Sadhana Agarwal Non — Executive Director v =

¢. Performance Evaluation

pursuant fo the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board, every year caries out the
annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the
evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration and Compliance
Committees. A structured guestionnaire is prepared affer taking info consideration the inputs
received from the Directors, covering valious aspects of the Board's functioning such as
adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance.

A separate exercise is carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including
the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement
and contribution, independence of judgment safeguarding the interest of the Company and its
minority shareholders etc. The performance evaluations of the independent Directors are carried
out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent
Directors is caried out by the Independent Director who also reviews the performance of the
Secretarial Department. The Directors hereby express their safisfaction with fhe evaluation
process.

d. Remuneration Policy

The Board of Directors has framed o policy which lays down a framework in relation to
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company.
This policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board Members. The
Components of the fotal remuneration vary for different grades and are govemned by best
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Industry practices. The remuneralfion and promotion of employees are stipulated having regard fo
industry pattern, their qualification and experience, responsibilities nhandled by them, their
individual performances and such other dliied factors. The objective of the Remuneration Policy is
1o motivate employees, recognize their contribution, Retain talent in the organization and record

merit.

5. Remuneration of Directors

a) During the year, there was no pecuniary relationship or fransactions petween the Company
and any of its Non-Executive Directors apart from payment of sitting fees to them for attending
the Board Meetings of the Company.

b) Non-Executive Directors’ compensation and disclosures

The Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Direciors, are paid Sitfing fees for attending
the meetings of the Board and Committees of the Board.

The Company also reimpurses out- of-pocket expenses incurred by the Directors for attending the
Board & Committee meetings. All the payment 1o non- execulive Directors is within the celling of
1% of net profits of the Company. computed under the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act. 2013.

Commission
pertaining to
2023-24

Ms. Sadhana Agarwal _

Mr. Nandan Kumar Basu

Commission \ sitling Fees paid
pertaining to in FY 2023-24
2023-24

60,000/-

40,000/-

)\f - \ 60,000/- J

Mr. Tapan Kumar Chakraborty

Mr. Gaurav Khemani B ‘ 60,000/- J

! i 2 ‘ 2,40,000/-

Reimbursement expenses paid to dll Non-Execufive and independent Directors for various
purposes is NIL.

c) (i) & (ii) The Remuneration details of Managing Director / Executive Director are mentioned
below:

Mr. Shanti Swarup Agg arwdl

Rs.84.00 Lakh per annum

Particulars
Salary as per provisions contained in Section
17(1) of the iIncome-Tax Act, 19561
Allowances and perquisites
Contribution to Retrial Funds I, -
Incentive ~ -
stock Option B
No. of Shares held 303550

service Confract For 3 Years
Notice Period 1 Month
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(iiii) Stock options
The Company has not granted Stock Option to any of its Directors.
6. THE STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

a. Composition, name of members and Chairman of the Committee

The Stakeholder's Relafionship Committee was constituted w.e.f. 30.04.2019 so as o comply with

the provisions of Regulafion 20 of the SEBI Listing

Obligations & Disclosure Requirements (LODR)

Regulations, 2015. The Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprised of 3 members as on

31.03.2024. Mr. Nandan Kumar Basu as Chairman, Mr. Tapan

Kumar Chakraborty and Smit.

sadhana Agarwal as ofher CO members. The Commiftee held four[4) fimes on 15.05.2023,

14,08.2023, 05.10.2023 and 12.02.2024.

The Commiitee's ferms of reference,

infer-alia includes consideration and resolving the

grievances of shareholders. The Committee also OVErsees the performance of the Registrar and

Share Transfer Agent and recommends measures
investor services as and when need arises.

To expedite the process of share transfers, the Board has delegated the power
the Registrars and Share Transfer Agent and share transfer formalities, it any.
fhem on a fortnightly basis. The composition of the Committee

members at the meetings of the Committee held in 2023-24 are given below:

for overall improvement of the quality of

of share transfer 1o
are approved by

and details of attendance by ifs

Name of Members | Category Aftendance at the Stakeholders Reloﬂonstﬁ
Committee Meetings held on
15.0523 | 140823 | 05.10.23 12.02.24
Mr. Nandan Kumar | Non - Executive v v v v
Basu-(Chairman) Independent Direcfor
Mr. Tapan | Non - Execufive v v v v
Chakraborty Independent Director 1
Smt. Sadnana | Non - Executive Director v v v \ v
Mgorwo\ J

b. Name and designation of Compliance Officer

Mr. Narendra Narayan Mondal, Company secretary is the Compliance Officer for complying with

the requirements of Securifies laws.

c. Number of shareholders’ complaints received, number not solved o the satisfaction of

shareholders and number of pending complainis

Given below are the position of queries / complaints and other correspondences received and

attended to during the financial year 2023-24 in respect of equity shares:

rNuiure of Complaints / Queries | No of Complaints / Queries | No of Complaints not solved fo |
received the satisfaction of Shareholder
Transfer of Shares Nil Nil
Non-receipt of Annual Report Nil Nil
Pending Share Transfers Nil Nil |
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7. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The Board has consfituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) to look info the
following:

[ Matters specified in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 which inter-alia includes:
(a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporatfe Social Responsibility Policy which
shall Indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule

VII;

(b) Recommend the amount of expenditure fo be incurred on the activities referred to in
clause (a);

(c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from fime to time.

II. Monitor and provide guidance on Company’s policies on environment management,
social responsibilities. health & safety, product stewardship, community development,
principles of monaging branded operations, efc.

Iil. Provide guidance on welfare activities in and around Kolkata or other places.

During the financial year ended 315 March, 2024, CSR Committee Meetings were held fwice
on14.08.2023 and 12.02.2024. The attendance of Committee members are as follows:

rNOme of Members Category Affendance at the CSR
Committee Meetings held on
14.08.2023 12.02.2024
Mr. Nandan Kumar | Non = Executive Independent 4 v
Basu -{Chairman) Director
MrTapan Chakraborty | Non = Executive Independent v al
Director
@T.Sodhanc Agarwal | Non — Executive Director v v J

8. Risk Management Commitiee

The Board of Directors of the Company had consiituted w.e.f. 25.10.2016, @ “Risk Management
Commitiee” in compliance to the provisions of Regulation 21 of the SEBI Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The commitiee was reconstifuted on
12.02.2024. 1i consists of three members for the time being consisting of two Non-Executive
Independent Directors and a senior executive of the company.

The objectives and scope of the Risk Management Commitiee broadly comprises:

Oversight of risk management performed by the executive management;

e Reviewing the BRM policy and framework in line with local legal requirements and SEBI
guidelines;

e Reviewing risks and avaluate treatment including initiating mitigation actions and
ownership as perd Pre-defined cycle;

e Defining framework for identification, assessment, monitoring and mitigation and reporting
of risks.
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The Composition of the Risk Managemen’f Committee as at March 31, 2024 and details of the
Members participation at the said Committee Meeting on 15.05.2023, 14.08.2023, 10.11.2023 and
12.02.2024 are as under.

Name of Mempoers Attendance at the Risk Management

Committee Meeting held on

~75.0523 | 14.08.23 | 10.11.23 | 120224
v v v v

Category

Mr. Nandan Kumar Non - Executive
Basu-{Chairman Independent Director

Mr. Tapan | Non 2 Executive \ v
Chakrabort Independent Director
Mr. Swapan  Kr. Chief Financial Officer
Majumder

A.Location and time where last 3 AGMs were held and number of special resolutions passed:

Time No. of Special Resolution(s)

approved df the AGM
1

2020-21 Reyistered Office, 30.09.2021 11 .00 AM

Kolkata

2021-22 22.09.2022 11.00 AM il

Registered Office,
Kolkata

2022-23 25.09.2023 11.00 AM

Registered Office,
Kolkata

b. Whether any special resolulion passed last year through postal ballot - details of voling pattern
- No special resolutions were passed during 2023-24 through postal ballot.

¢. Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise: N.A.

d. Whether any special resolution is proposed fo be conducted through postal ballot: No.

e. Procedure for postal ballof: N.A.

The quarterly resulfs are published in the
newspapers and also displayed on the
Company’s wepsite.

The quarterly resulis are generally published in the
statesman, Millennium Post (English) and Aajkal
(Bengdli).
The quarterly results of the Company are put on
the website of the Company after these are
submitted to the Stock Exchanges. Our website
address is www indussgroup .net

Whether it also displays official news | Yes

releases

The Presentations made to institutional
investors or to analysts

Quarterly results

Newspapers wherein results normally
published

Any website, where displayed
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A. Annual General Meefin (AGM), Book Closure period and Dividend Payment Date:

Day Date Time Venue Book Closure |  Dividend
Period Payment Date
Monday | 25" September, | 1 1.00 | 2388, AJC BOSE ROAD 19/092023 to NL.A.
2023 AM , KOLKATA -700020 25/09/2023
B. Financial Year: April 1 1O March 31
C. Financial Calendar
[ Board Meetings for approval of Tentafive dates
Annual Accounts for 2023-2024 and Financial Results for 4 30 May, 2024 _
Quarter for 2023-2024
Financial Resulis for 15 Quarter 2023-2024 Before 14t August, 2023 |
Financial Results for 2@ Quarter 2023-2024 Before 14 November, 2023 |
Financial Results for 3¢ Quarter 2023-2024 Before 14 February , 2024 j
| Annual Accounts 2023-2024 Before end of Jul, 2024

D. Name and address of each stock Exchange at which Company shares are listed and Stock
Code:

Listing on Stock Name Address \ stock Code
Exchange
Equity Shares The Calcutia Stock 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata 019115 (For Physical)
Exchange Association |- 700 001
Limited
Listing Fees:

Annual Listing fees for 2023-24 have been duly paid to The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association
Limited.

E. Market price data - High, Low and number of shares fraded during each month in the last
Financial Year

There was no trading of the Company’s shares on the Caleutta Stock Exchange during 2023-24.
F. Perfformance in comparison fo broad-based indices: N.A.

G. (i) Registrar & Transier Agents

Address ' Contact Details i
Registered Niche Technologies Private Limited Telephone: 033 2280 661 6
Office 3A, Auckland Place 7" Floor, Room No. | /6617 16618
7A & 7B, Kolkata, West Bengal 70001 7

#The Registrars can be contacted between 10.00 a.m. and 3.30 p.m. on any working day
(Monday 1o Friday, excluding bank/ public holidays).

(ii) shareholders’ Relation Cell

| contact person l Address Contact Details
Mr. Narendra Induss Food Products &Equipments Limited | Telephone: 033 2287 8503 ] 9266
Narayan 238/B, AJ.C.Bose Road, 34 Floor, Kolkata | / 1962
Mondal — 700 020 Email: info@indussgroup.com

#The Company Secrefary can be contacted between 10.00 a.m. and 3.30 p.nh. on any working
day (Monday fo Friday, excluding bank / public holidays).
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H. Share transfer system

Shares in physical form for iransfer, should be lodged with the office of the Company's Registrar &
Share Transfer Agenf, at the addresses given in 10(g) (i) above or at the registered office of the
Company. The transfers are processed if technically found to be in order and complete in all
respects. As per directives issued by SEBL it is compulsory to trade in the Company's equity shares
in dematerialized form.

I. Members' / Investors’ Complaints:

A Practicing Company secretary conducts quarterly audit of the records maintacined by the
Company/ RTA and submifs quarterly Audit Reports o the Company. The said audit reports are
placed before the Board of Directors of the Company at its meetings.

The Company has received certificates / confirmations from the Stock Exchanges (BSE/ CSE) that
there were no pending complainis in 1he records of the Stock Exchangeés as on March 31, 2024.

1. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

Since the equity shares of the Company are compulsorily fraded in dematerialized mode, the
Members are advised to hold their shares in dematerialized mode wilh any Depository Participants
(DPs) registered with NSDL and/or CDSL. Reguesis for demateriglization of shares should be sent
directly by fthe concemed DPs to the RTA for further processing. As on March 31, 2024, 79.03% of
the total paid-up share capital of the Company represented by 6,71 750 Equity Shares are held in
dematerialized mode

Distribution of Shareholding:

Distibution of Shareholding as af 315t March, 2024 is as follows:

| No. of Shares Holding Amount (Rs.) | % of Capital No. of % of total
Holders Holders
1 to 500 100 1000 00118 1 1.1494
501 t01000 7000 70000 0.8235 7 8.0460
1001 to 5000 198450 1984500 23.3471 74 85.0575
5001 to 10000 6000 60000 0.705% 1 1.14%94
10000 to 14700 147000 1.7294 1 1.14%94
50000
50000 fo 0 0 0 0 0
100pp00 J
Greater than 623750 6237500 73.3824 3 3.4483
100000
| Total 850000 | 8500000 100.0000 87 100.0000
Categories of Shareholders as at 31 March, 2024:
SL No. Particulars No. of Accounts | Holdings / Shares held % to Capital
1 Companies 1 4000 0.471
2 Individuals & Others 86 846000 99.529
| Total 850000 100.00
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SHARE HOLDIN
Total Equity)

G PATTERN as on March 31, 2024 (Equity Share Capital Breakup s

i. Category-wise Share Holding

percentage of

Category of

shareholders

A. Promoter

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year [As on 31¢

March 2023]

No. of Shares held at the end of
the year[As on 31¢ March 2024)

%Chungt;\
during

the year

Demat | Physical |

Totm % of

Demat
Total
Shares

Physical

Total

% of
Total

Shares

(1)Indian

a)individual 1623750' Nil

‘/HUF \

623750 73.382

623750

Nil

623750

73.382

0.00

b)Central

Govt

c) StaleGovt

d) Bodies

€)Banks/Fl

f) Any

0
—

Sub-total (A)
(1):-

623750| Nil i623750
|

623750

(2)Foreign

a)NRIs-
Individua

e = ||

b)Other-
Individua

c) Bodies

T —— T

d)Banks/Fl

T b=t T 7 i ]

e) Any
| Other

T
\__
r
T

—r——T 1T [ T | T T

‘ Sub-total
\ (®) (2):-

otal
shareholding
of Promoter

(A)=

623750

|
\

|

Nil 623750

73.382 | 623750

Nil

623750

0.00

B.Public
hareholding
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Tinsfitutions

Funds

) Banks / FI

c) Central

ST

E State -
| Venture |
|

a) Mutual - )» - . : i B B i
|
[
%
F

Jinsurance
Cornpanies

Cow (R DR A N (D | i

(i) Others - - -- - - - = - -

| |
0 l 4000 \ 4000 | 0.471 0 4000 | 4000 | 0.471 0.00 J
| |
| |

Individual 53000
shareholders
holding
nominal share ‘
capital up to
Rs. 1/2 lakh

169250 |222250| 26.147 | 53000 154550 | 207550 24.418 4212

hareholders

olding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs
1/2 lakh

Individual - - 2 = = = 3 % \ T

c)Others ‘ = | = % a . = | = = .

L(SPEC'IfY) \ \
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Sub-
otal(B)(2):-

| 53000

173250 |226250

26.147 | 67700

158550

226250| 26,618

ofal Public | 53000

hareholding

& =]

173250

226250 26.618 | 67700

158550

226250| 26.618 0.00

. Shares
held by
ustodian
for GDRs &
DRs

0 F 0]

1
rand Total  |676750| 173250 | 850000

(A+B+C) ‘

|

100.00 | 691450

158550

850000\ 100.00 0.00

0.00 j

-
Il

shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the beginning

shareholding at the end of the |

|

sl. No. Shareholder’s
Name of the year year
|
No.of 1% of total| %of Shares | No. of %% of | %of Shares | %
Shares |Shares of Pledged / | Shares total | Pledged/ [change
the |encumbere shares|encumbered| in
company| d tofotal of the fo total Share
shares compa shares |holding
ny during
the
year
1 Shanfiswarup | 172000 | 20.23 Nil 172000 | 20.23 Nil Nl \
‘ ggarwal (karta
of HUF)
1
4] adhana 148200 | 17.43 Nil 148200 | 17.43 Nil ‘ Nil
garwal
3. [shanti Swarup ‘303550 35.71 \ Nil 303550 | 35.71 Nil Nil
ggarwal \
|
| Total " 623750 | 73.38 |  Nil | 423750 | 73.38 Nl | Nil

iil. Change in Promoters’ shareholding ( please specify. if there is no change)\

L No.]For Each of the Top 10
Fhareholders'

of the year

the year

Shareholding at the beginning \Cumuluﬁve shareholding during

No.of shares [%of total shares
f the company

No.of shares

%%0f total shares of
the company

No Change
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Top Ten shareholders

As at 315t March, 2024 the top ten shareholders of the Company were as follows:-

shareholder’s Name No. of Shares 7, of total Shares of
the Compan

1 4000 — o4l |
ﬂ 4000 o4 |
ﬂm_
4000 0.471
INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS AND 14700 1.729
EQUIPMENTS LTD SUSPENSE ESCROW
DEMAT ACCOUNT
4000 r— ban |
6000 0706 |
ﬂmﬂm_‘m_
9 | RANJEET MAL KOTHARI ‘m_
5 K OJHA 5000 0.588
1 m_ 5000

#There are other shareholders foc holding 4000 shares. The details of the same may pe collected
from the registered office of the Company during business hours.

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warranis or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely
impact on equity: NA

Factory Locations
INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LTD, SUDHARASS FOOD PARK, (Near Water Tank 2) Plot no
F-17 2nd Phase, PO +PS = Sankrail, Near Dhulagarh Toll Tax, Howrah -711302.

Credit Rating: Not Applicable

Other Disclosures

(a) Related Party Transactions Prior approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for all Related
Party Transactions entered by the Company. During the financial year ended March 31,

2024, the Cempany did not have any ‘material’ related party transaction that may have
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

(b) There were NO instances of non-compliances related fo capitdl markets during the last

year.

() The Company has established an affective Vigil Mechanism System and © Vigil Mechanism
Committee under the Chairmanship of the Audit Committee Chairman is clso in place. No
person has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

(d) All mandatory requirements relating to corporate governance under the Listing Regulations
have been generally complied.
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(e) Subsidiary Companies As on the date of this Repart, the Company does not have any

subsidiary, joint venture or associate companies. Accordingly provision of section 129 (3) of

the Companies Act, 2013 relating 1o consolidation of accounts are not applicable o the
Company.

(f) The Board of Directors of the Company has revised the existing Related Party Transactions
Policy pursuant to the amendments in Secfion 188 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder
and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations.

(g) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: NIL

(h) No funds were raised by the Company through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement.

i) A certificate confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or coniinuing as directors of companies by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Report of Company Secretaries and the same

is Annexure - F to fhis Repord.

(jj During fhe financial year ended March 31, 2024, the Board has accepted all the
recommendations of ifs Committees.

(k) In terms of the provisions of Sexual Harcssment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibifion and Redressal] Act, 2013 (as amended) and Rules framed thereunder, no
complaints received during the financial year 2023-24.

(1) Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: Not
applicable.

Other items which are nof applicable 1o the Company have not been separately commented
upon.

CERTIFICATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) and CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) TO THE
BOARD

We, Shanti Swarup Aggarwal, Managing Director and Swapan Kumar Majumder, Chief Financial
Officer of Induss Food Products & Equipment Limited, certify that:

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow siotement for the year 2023-24
and that fo the best of our knowledge and belief:

a) These statements do not contain any materially unirue statement or omit any material fact or
cortain statements that might be misleading:

b) These statements fogether present a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There cre, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the

company during the year which are fraudulent, flegal or violative of the company’s code of
conduct.
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3 We accept overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control for financial
reporting. This is monitored by the infernal audit function, which encompasses he examination
and evaluation of ihe adeguacy and effectiveness, of internal control. The infernal auditor works
with all levels of management and statutory auditors and reports significant issues o the audit
committee of the Board. The auditors and audit commiftee are apprised of any corrective action
taken with regard to significant deficiencies in the design of operation of internal confrols.

4. We indicale fo the quditors and to the Audit Commitiee:
6) Significant changes in interal control over financial reporting during the year.

b) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes 10 the financial stafements; and

¢) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and which involve
management or other employees having significant role in the company's internal confrol
system and financial reporting.

INDUSS FOOD PRODUCITS & EQUIPMENTS LTD
For and on Behall of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23.08.2024

| A Gyt /))/

Shanti Swarup Aggarwal SWAPAN KUMAR MAJUMDER
Managing Director & CEQ Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 032201 |
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Annexure-B
Management Discussion & Analysis Report
1. Economic Environment

The Economic Environment during fhe year under review was over all satisfactory and the
company has recorded a substantial growth in the turnover in terms of bofh in domestic and
Export sales.

2. Market Trends

Industry: Since rice s highest consuming food item of this country, this industry has substantial
scope to grow normally .And with the increased production of paddy, and the requirement of
new rice plents will also increase simulfaneously.

Although the market trends in year on the review was safisfactory, however for the current
financial year, the export to Bangladesh may affect due to their internal foreign exchange issues
and putting hold the finance on rice mils by the Indian bank.

The company Wil continue with focused approach on technology and infrastruciure up
gradation on a confinuous basis It will be under taking additional nifiatives to strengthen relation
with customers and build a sirong team, which will further enhance the company's competitive
position in the industry domestically and globally.

More importanily. the company will confinue o focus on growing ifs core Parboiling & Drying rice
mill machineries business by expanding domestic as well as globailly in the coming yedar.

By mainfaining a best financial position and balance sheet the company is well positioned to
surge as ahead and augment growth.

3. Review of Business

It has already been discussed earlier in the Directors Report as Financial review and Business
overview.

4. Threats, Risks and Concerns

Maijor risk in the rice mill industry is unforeseen flood, which effects the production of rice
substantially and sale of ihe machineries.

Although. the export of rice helps the rice mill industry to flourish, however, the govemments of
Bcn_giodesh and Nigeria have recently banned/increased import duties onrice along with recent
internation political unrest . This could be a threat o the industry in the current financial year.

5. Risk Management

The Company has d system of documenting and reviewing key risks. Apart from management
reviews, the risks are clso periodically reviewed by the Board and Risk Management Commiftee.
The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls.

4. Human Resources and Industrial Relations

Your Company is confinuously committed o nurfuring, enhancing. retaining and development of
talent on an ongoing basis through superior Learning & Organizational Development. A number of
programs that provide focused people attention are currently underway. Your Company thrust is
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on the promotion of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement. Your Company
stresses on lesser Employee Turnover and higher Employee Retention.

The total number of employees on the rolls as on 314 March, 2024 was 100
7. Internal Controls and Governance

The Company's internal financial control framework s commensurate with the size and operations
of the business and is in line with requirements of regulations. The Company has laid down
procedures and policies fo guide the operations of the business. Unit/functional heads are
responsible for ensuring compliance with the policies and procedures laid down by fhe
management. The Company's internal control systems are routinely tested by the Management,
Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors. Your Company and its senior management have affirmed
adherence to the Code of Conduct framed by the Company.

8. Internal Audit

The Internal audit function carries out a focused and risk based annual internal audit plan
approved by the Audit Committee. The internal audit primarily focuses on the adequacy of
appropriate systems and controls. The internal audit reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee
periodically.

9. Cautionary statement

Certain statements made in this report relating to the Company's cbjectives, projections, outlook,
expectations, estimates, among others may constitute ‘forward-looking statements' within the
meaning of applicable laws and regulafions. Actual results may differ from such expectations,
projections efc., whether express or implied. several factors could make a significant difference to
the Company’s operafions. These include climatic condifions , economic conditions affecting
demand and supply. government regulations and taxation, natural calamity, currency rate
changes, among others over which the Company does not have any direct conirol.

10. Conclusion

Your Company’s primary focus will be grow volumes across markets. Your Company will focus on
profitable growth through a mix of brand led growth, innovation and cost efficiencies.

INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LTD
For and on Behalf of the Board of Direciors

Place: Kolkatd

ofe: 23.08. Aiﬂw)ﬁb 7&&6’,/);

Shanti Swarup Aggarwal sadhana Agarwal
Managing Director & CEO Director
DIN: 0322011 DIN; 02239529
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Annexure - C

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant o clause {h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
[Accounts) Rules. 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contrqcis/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

3. Detdils of contracis or arrangementis or transactions not at arm’s length basis
Name(s) of the related party and nature

(a)

of relationship
(b) | Nature of coniracts/anungements/

fransactions

Duration of the contracts /

arrangements/ transgctions
Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or Hransactions including
the value, if an
Justification for entering info such
contracts or arrangements or
transactions

(f) | Datels] of approval by the Board
(g) | Amount paid as advances, if any
)

(h) | Dateon which the special resolution was
passed in general meeting as reguired
under first proviso 10 section 188

2. Details of material contracts or amangement of transactions at arm's length basis and in the
ordinary course of business

()

(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of | Induss Rice Accessories Private Limited,
relationship

(b) | Nature of contracts/ Inter Corporate Deposit

arrangemen’is/imnsc:nc’fions

Duration of the contra
fransactions

cts / arrangements/ 3 years

(d) | Salient terms of the confracts  or [ Rs 2 50,00,000 amount paid as ICD with in’;eres’r‘
arrangements of transaciions including the @9% p.Q.
value, if any:
£ Datel(s) of approval by the Board/Audit | Approved earlier by members

Committee, if any
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(i)

Name(s) of the related party and nature
of relationship

Mr  Shanti  Swarup Aggarwal, Managing
Director and Shareholders

(b) | Nature of contracts/

urrc:ngemen’rsftrcmsacﬁons
Duration of the confracts / arangements/ | 3 years w.e.f. 01 110.2021

Employment agreement

transactions

Salient terms  of the contracts oOr Regular employment; in the ordinary course of
arrangements  or transactions including business of the Company. Requisite approval
the value, if any: of General Meeting obtained

(d)

NA

Committee, if any
Amount paid oF advances, f any: £ A S [

Datels] of approval by the Board/Audit

INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LTD
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23.08.2024 /

LA dagonart-

Shanti Swarup Aggarwdal sadhana Agarwal
Managing Director & CEO Director
DIN: 0322011 DIN: 02239529
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S BASU & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries
“s Saurabh Basu Code No.- S2017WB456500
ACS, ACMA, MBA (Fin) 10/6/2 Raja Rammohan Roy Road,
Practising Company Secretary 3" Floor, Kolkata - 700008

Insolvency Professional

Form No MR 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
238B A ] C BOSE ROAD, KOLKATA- 700020

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by INDUSS FOOD
PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED (CIN: L35204WB1987PLC031664)
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the Financial year ended on 315T MARCH, 2024
(‘Audit Period’) generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
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i ; S BASU & ASSOCIATES
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Code No.- 52017WB456500

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 315T MARCH, 2024
according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made
there under;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there
under;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings to the extent applicable;

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): to the extent applicable

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulation, 2021;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021;
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S BASU & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries
Code No.- 52017WB456500

Continuation Sheet

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018;

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(J) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

() Secretarial Standards with regards to Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and
General Meeting (85-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(1Cs1).

(i) Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with The Calcutta Stock
Exchage Limited read with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further report that:

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

b) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent as per the provisions of the Act and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting,

¢) Majority decision of the Board and Committee Meetings are carried through,
while the dissenting members’ views, if any are captured and recorded as part of
the minutes.
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Code No.- $2017WB456500

On the basis of information provided to us, we further report that there are adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines except the followings:

A Fraud of Rs. 71,851206/- has been noticed and reported during the year. The
company has recovered a sum of Rs. 7145,000/-. The Company is taking legal and
other action for recovery as informed.

This report is to be read with our letter on even date which is annexed as Annexure A
and forms an integral part of this report.

For S Basu& Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No : S2017WB456500

Place: Kolkata
Date: 12.07.2024

Practising Comipany Sécretary
ACS: - 18686; C.P.- 14347
Peer Review No: 1017/2020
UDIN: A018686F000728967
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Annexure A

To,

The Members,

INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
238B A | C BOSE ROAD, KOLKATA- 700020

Based on audit, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the
applicable laws and maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our Audit
in accordance with the auditing standards CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 (“CSAS") prescribed by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI"). These standards require that the
Auditor complies with statutory and regulatory requirements and plans and performs
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and
maintenance of records.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating
controls, there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-
compliance may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with the CSAS. Our report of even date is to be read along with
this letter.

Management’s Responsibility

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

[F%]

We have conducted the Audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

4. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our
opinion,

5. Wherever required, we have obtained reasonable assurance as to whether the

statements prepared, documents or records, in relation to Secretarial Audit,
maintained by the Company, are free from misstatement.
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6. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management’s representation about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

7. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification was done on the random test basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

8. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

9. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedures on the random test basis.

Disclaimer

10. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

11. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.

For S Basu& Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Kolkata ’; L/

Date: 12.07.2024 4 f o T8
\ s
WO

AN ! h Basu
Practising Compa / ecretary
ACS: -18686; C.P.- 14347

Peer Review No:1017/2020
UDIN: A018686F000728967
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S BASU & ASSOCIATES
“s Saurabh Basu - Company Secretaries
ACS, ACMA, MBA (Fin) ode No.- $2017WB456500
L 10/6/2 RajaR
Practising Corpany Secretary 3'{’aF|§$T<g?kZ’:aR?;o%%aodé
Insolvency Professional ,

CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[Pursuant to Clause E of SCHEDULE V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

TO THE MEMBERS OF

M/S. INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
CIN: L35204WB1987PLC031664
238/B ,A.].C Bose Road, Kolkata-700020

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by
M/S. INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED (“the Company”)
for the year ended March 31, 2024 as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D, and E of schedule V of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation,2015 as amended from time to time (“SEBI LODR")
and other applicable regulations of it and the guidelines on Corporate
Governance.

Management’s Responsibility

2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the
Management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all
relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.

3. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for
ensuring that the Company complies with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI LODR, issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India.
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Practising Company Secretary’s Responsibility

4. Our examination was limited to procedure and implementation thereof, adopted
by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance.

5. Pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI LODR, it is our responsibility to provide
a reasonable assurance whether the company has complied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in SEBI LODR for the year ended 31t
March,2024.

6. The procedures include but are not limited to verification of secretarial records
and other information of the Company.

7. The procedures also include examining evidence supporting the particulars in
the Corporate Governance Report on a test basis.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has, in all material
respects, complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and part C and D of
Schedule V to the SEBI LODR for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Other Matters and Restrictions on use

9. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

10.The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely
for the purpose of complying with the requirement of the SEBI LODR, and it should
not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not
Page 2 of 3
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accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other‘Sifiplise 62 AY¥p456500
other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come
without our prior consent in writing.

S Basu & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No: SZOlWSﬁSﬂ

Place: Kolkata

Date: 19.08.2024 Membership No. ACS18686 Nﬂfli?.dr"f
Peer Review No: 1017/2020
UDIN: A018686F000999721
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

ANNEXURE -E

Farticulars pursuant to Section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Accounts Rule, 2014 forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 315 March, 2022

Besides implementing the various measures for energy conservation reported last year,

programme for improved maintenance of equipment, modification of electric installation are
carried out regularly.

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH REPRECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

A. POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION

315" March,2024 315" March,2023
Electricity
qa) Purchased
Units 3,64,559 3.64,559
Total Amount (Rs.). 34,55,544 34,55,544
Rate/ Unit [Rs.) 10.55 10.55
b) Own Generation
Through Diesel Generator
Units 2587.32 2587.22
Total Amount (Rs.). 2,40,000 2,40,000
Rate/ Unit (Rs.) 9276 92.76
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B.CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION

315" March,2024 315" March,2023
A) DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT
OF TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
i) Research & Development Nil Nil
ii) Technology Absorpiion, Adaptation and Nil Nil
Innovation
B) FORIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGQO
i) Expenditure In Foreign Cumrency
Travelling 42,57 421 29,50,169
Import Goods 70,37,174 89,87,148
Export Promotion Expenses NIL NIL
ii) Earning in Foreign Currency
Export at F.O.B 6,73,06,226 24,45,69,676

INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LTD
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23.08.2024

| Uyt

Shanti Swarup Aggarwal
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 0322011

e

Sadhana Agarwal

Director
DIN; 02239529
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“s Saurabh Basu Code No.- S2017WB456500
ACS, ACMA, MBA (Fin) 10/6/2 Raja Rammohan Roy Road,
Practising Company Secretary 3" Floor, Kolkata - 700008

Insolvency Professional

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To
The Members of

INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
238B A ] C BOSE ROAD KOLKATA - 700020

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received
from the Directors of INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED having CIN:
L35204WB1987PLC031664 and having registered office at 238B A ] C BOSE ROAD
KOLKATA - 700020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by
the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications
(including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as
considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers,

I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below
for the Financial Year ending on 315t March,2024 have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory

Authority.
Sr. No. | Name of Director DIN Original Date of
Appointment in
Company
1. SHANTI SWARUP AGGARWAL 00322011 26/05/1987
2 SADHANA AGARWAL ' 02239529 20/11/2014
3. NANDAN KUMAR BASU 02449375 30/01/2010
4, TAPAN KUMAR CHAKRABORTY 06676727 20/11/2014
5 GAURAV KHEMANI 07435545 07/10/2017
Page1of2
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is
the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

S Basu & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No: SZ017WB4

Place: Kolkata

\\ Propriétof
Date: 19.08.2024 Membership No. ACS18686 CP'No:1434
Peer Review No: 1017/2020
UDIN: A018686F000999688
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ANNEXURE - G

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to Section 135 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

. Brief Outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Board of Directors has approved its CSR Policy recommended by CSR
Committee at the Board meeting held on 12.02.2024, based on the
recommendations of the CSR Committee. The said CSR Policy has been
developed in conformity with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 (as amended) (the "Act”) and in accordance with the CSR Rules (the
“Rules”) notfified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India which
underlines the guiding principles and mechanisms for undertaking various CSR
activities/ programs by the Company. The objectives of the STL CSR Policy are to:

Induss Food Products & Equipments Ltd’s CSR Policy intends to:

» Strive for economic development that positively impacts society at large with
minimal resource footprint.

* Embrace responsibility for the Company’s actions and encourage a positive
impact through its activities to alleviate hunger, poverty, and malnutrition; to
protect the environment; and to support communities, stakeholders and society.

FOCUS AREAS The main responsibilities of the Company towards society at large
are to eradicate hunger, poverty and malnutrition; promote preventive health
care and sanitation and making available safe drinking water, promoting gender
equality and empowering women. Steelman Telecom Limited shall take CSR
Initiative in accordance with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 as has
been clarified in the General Circular No.21/2014 dated 18 June, 2014 and
subsequent Circular / noftifications issued by Govt. of India time to time

OUR VISION. The Company completely endorses reliability. It is committed to

conduct business in a true, fair and ethical manner and takes up the responsibility
to create a good impact in the society it belongs.

The Company is committed tfowards improving the quality of lives of people in the
communities in which it operates because society is an essential stakeholder and
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the purpose of its existence. The Company believes that giving back to the society
through CSR activities is its moral duty.

OBJECTIVE OF THE CSR POLICY

e To ensure that the Company is committed to operate its business in an

economically,

socially and environmentally

recognizing the interests of all its stakeholders.

sustainable manner,

while

* To take up programmes that benefit the communities in and around its work
centers and over a period of tfime, results in enhancing the quality of life of the
people in the area of its business operations.

* To generate a community goodwill for BIL and help reinforce a positive and
socially responsible image of BIL as a good corporate citizen of the Counfry.

Further, the policy also lays down the role of the CSR Committee, responsibilities of

the Board, CSR Programmes/Projects,

Implementation process,

criteria for

identifying executing partners, monitoring and evaluation mechanisms, etc.,

The complete policy document can be accessed on the website of the
Company-

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Director

SR. [IName of Director(s) Designation / Nature Number of Number of
No. of directorship meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Committee held Committee
during The year | attended during
the year
1. Mr. Nandan Kumar Non - Executive 2 2
Basu -(Chairman) Independent Director
2  |Mr. Tapan Chakraborty [Non — Executive 2 2
Independent Director
3. Smt. Sadhana Agarwal  [Non — Executive 2 2

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company-

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if

applicable — Not Applicable.

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:
Rs.31597992/-
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(b)Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of
section
135: Rs.631960/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years: Nil

(d)Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(e)Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] : Rs.631960/-.

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project): Rs. 1310750/-.

(b)Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil
(c)Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Nil

(d)Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] : Rs. 1310750/-.

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: -

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

fotal Amount Spent Total Amount  |Amount fransferred to any fund specified under
ff)r fhe Financial Year transferred to Schedule VIl as per second proviso to sub-
(inRs.) Unspent CSR section (5)
Amount | Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of transfer
Rs. 1310750/-. NIL NIL Not Applicable

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sr. No |Particulars Amount in Rupees

1 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Rs.631960/-.
section 135(5)

2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 1310750/-

3 Excess amount spent for the financial year [(2)-(1)] Rs.678790/-

4 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or NIL
activities of the previous financial years, if any

5 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years Rs.678790/-
[(3)-(4)]

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the
preceding three Financial Years: Not Applicable
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl. |Precedi| Amount | Balance [ Amount|Amount transferred| Amount |Deficien
No. ng fransferred | Amount in| Spent in foa remaining|cy, if any

Financial to Unspent the Fund as specified fo be
Year(s) | Unspent CSR Financial under spentin
CSR Year (in |Schedule VIl as per|succeedi
Account .
Account Rs) second proviso to ng
under sub- . .
under sub- | 4 sub- Financial
section (6) section (6) section (5) of Years
of . .
of . section 135, (in Rs)
. section 135 .
section 135 if any
(inRs.) (in Rs.)
Amount | Date of
(in Rs) | Transfer

Not Applicable

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through
Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No
.Hence no reporting of Capital Assets created is required.

9.

of the average net profit as per subsection (5) of section 135: Not
applicable.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 23.08.2024

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent

INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LTD
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

SD
Mr. Nandan Kumar Basu

(Chairman of CSR
Committee)

DIN: 06676727

SD
Shanti Swarup

Aggarwal

Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 00322011
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K. R. SRIRAM & CO.

Chartered Accountants

2H, MERLIN LINKS, 1668 - S. P. MUKHERJEE ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 026, E-MAIL : emailus@krsriram.com; PHONE : 2465 6413

INDIPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF M/S INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/S INDUSS FOOD
PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at
March 31, 2024, and the standalone statement of Profit and Loss and standalone statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In terms of SA 701, and based on our audit we report that there are no Key Audit Matters to be
reported for the year under review.,
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including

Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the'financialﬂ -

statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. ‘

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act, This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting pelicies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends te liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
s0.

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.




)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and-
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs; we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: *

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of managements and Board of Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate; to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably bé thought to bear on our iggggfndence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. \WRAY 2




From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most. significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our= «
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (1) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable. ;

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss, and the
standalone statement cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

(&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operative effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

<. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.




d. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, otherthan as
disclosed in note 2 & 3 to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,« .
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

e. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 2 & 3 to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons
or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Com pany shall directly or indirectly, lend of invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or
on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries. '

f. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considéred reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-
statement.

g- No dividend has been paid by the Company during the year as no dividend has been declared
by the Company in the previous year in accordance with section 123 of Companies Act’2013.

h. (1) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Com pany has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with,

(2) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reperting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for the record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended march 31. 2024.

For K R SRIRAM & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
FRN.323146E . _
RAR
> AW

KRSNram  720Ae
(Partner)

Mem No. 055199
UDIN: 24055199BJZYHA3605 -
Place: Kolkata

Date: 15'" May, 2024



“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Régulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2024: y

1)

2)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased
manner, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the
fixed asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and
no material discrepancies between the book’s records and the physical fixed
assets have beennoticed. '

(c) On basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
propertly, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets
or both during the year. '

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals,

b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to
books records which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were
not material. :

€) The Company has no working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees or more,

a) The Company has granted unsecured loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of
the Act. Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year was Rs.
3:68!30:'52?/'-

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
rate of interest and other terms and conditions of the loans given by the Company, are
not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.




4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

The Company has granted loans as below: .
Particulars: Loans (Rs.)

ADDARSH MANAGMENT PVT LTD 55,01,874-
INDUSS RICE ACCESSORIES PVT LTD 2,50,00,000}-
IPCRESS FINANCE & SECURITIES PVT LTD 73,28,653/-

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security,

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the
activities carried on by the company.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, GST, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, GST, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax outstanding on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account,
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks/financial institutions.
The Company has not taken any loan from the government and has not issued any
debentures as on the balance sheet date.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or governrment
authority.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the.lpans were
obtained. A




13)

- d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall _ |

examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that
the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, as defined in the Act. The Company does not
hold any investment in any associate or joint venture (as defined in the Act) during the
year ended 31 March 2024.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on
the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act).

. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations

given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that a fraud has been committed on the company
by its employees which has been noticed and reported during the year. The Total
impact of the fraud is a loss of Rs. 71,85,206/-. Qut of which the c_ompany has recovered
a sum of Rs. 7,45,000/-, The Company is taking legal and other action for recovery of
the balance sum. We further report that the company has further taken action to
tighten its control for avoidance of such instances in the future.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.




16)

17)

18)

a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in
our-opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for
the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clauses 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are
not applicable.

b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

¢) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of
audit, the Group does not have any CICs.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year or, in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the .audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as anqw they fall
due,




20) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is
no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any
project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

21) There are no adverse or negative remarks to be reported.

For K R SRIRAM & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)

Mem No.-055199

UDIN: 24055199BJZYHA3605
Place: Kolkata

Date: 15" May, 2024



Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’in the,
Independent Auditors’ Report:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of M/s
INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED (“the Company”'), as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contrals with
reference to financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit eviderice we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit Gplﬁim on the

Company s internalfinancial controls with reference to financial statements 5“ V&




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A Company's intemal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process :
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the com pany are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an internal financial control syslem
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
«control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. However, during the
year there was a fraud committed by one of the employees which was detected through the
financial controls amounting to Rs. 64,40,206/- (net of recovery). The company expects to
recover the balance amount of the loss in the course of the year.

ForK R smm&kco.

(Charter: nts)
FRN: 341058 o \0)
~—ZTKOLKATA | #/

=i

K R Srifa S
artne I')j‘n B A{:.GU‘_‘&/

Mem No. -085199

UDIN: 24055199BJZYHA3605

Place: Kolkata

Date: 15th May, 2024



INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS B EQUIFPMENTS LIMITED
(CIN - L35204WB1987PLLO31664)
238B, A, J. €, Bose Road, Kollata - 700020

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH 2024:

Rs. In Thousand ("000) Rs.in Thousand ('ooo)
Particulars N:; . As at Mar;_h 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
[ ASSETS: | ; -

(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets 1

(i) Property, Plantand Equipment 53,874.49 43,403.77

(i) Otherintangible assets 391.28 236.26
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 2 1,46,002.68 1,22,637.90

(i) Loans 3 34,830.53 37,740.39

(2) Current Assets.
(a) Inventories 4 1,64,105.71 1,67,673.76
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivable 5 1,09,085.49 95,607.63
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 1,32,864.64 45,416.11
(i) Bank Balance Other than Above 7 £,385.51 6,601.28
{€) Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 0.00 10,036.69
(d) Other Current Assets g 50,515.39 23,865.11
6,97,055:79 5/53,311.89
| EQUITY & LIABILITIES: |
(1) Shareholders Funds
(2) Equity Share capital 10 8,500.00 8,500.00
(b) Other Equity
() Reserves & surplus 1 4,56,839.97 3,65,450.45
(2) Non-Currant Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 96.70 23,265.70
(b} Deferrad Tax Liabilities (Net) 13 4,662.91 4,463.22
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities ;
(1) Trade payables 14 . 52,148.95 47,871.32
(b) Other Current Liabilities 15 1,68,161.29 1,04,761.21
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 8 6,838.28 0.00
6,97,055.70 5,53,311:89
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
Additional Notes to Financial Statement and 30
Significant Accounting Folicies
Interms of our report of even date For &nd on behalf of the Board of Directors
For K.R.Sriram & CO Shanti Swarup Aggarwal Sadhana Agarwal
Chartered Agc%‘?@m\ {Managing Director & C.£.0:) (Director)
: & (DIN-00322011) (DIN: 02239529)

FRN: 3131453@

3146E %1 ﬁ

KOLKATA | % | P 5 DOe:

L2 «

. B B ;
(KR Sriram‘f«ed Aot Swapan Kumar Majumder Narendra Narayan Mandal
Partner - - {Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
(M. N0.-055199) (PAN-AJFFM3820L) (PAN-ADNPMoa74C)

UDIN: 24055190BIZYHA3605
Date: 15th May'2024
Place: Kolkata



: ' (NDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
(CIN - L35204WB1987PLC031664)
2388, A.J. €. Bose Road, Kolkata - 7000240

Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 315t March, z024:

Rs. in Thousand ('000) Rs. in Thousand ('000)
Particulars N::e Asat March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
. Revenue from operation 16 12,55,454.55 11,34,835.35
1. Otherincome 17 37,133.45+ 14,158.00
.  Total Income: (1+11) 12,92,588.01 11,53,993:35
Expense:
Cost of Material Consumed 18 8,89,093.21 8,32,396.37
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 19 4,861.30 9,950.61
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods 20 1,528.84 34.66 «
Manufacturing & Operating Expenses, 21 1,17,479.87 86,857.36
Employee Benefit Expense . 22 : 63,1 3353 ' 46,936.51
Finance Cost 23 1,701.67 4,623.45
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 1 4,280.07 3,684.60
Other Expenses 24 ; 83,229.00 94,329.65
IV, Total Expense: : 14,65,307.47 10,78,822.21
V  Profit Before Exceptional Item and Income Tax: (1lI-V) 1,27,280.53 7517113
Less: Exceptional item 0.00 0.00
VIl  Profit Before Tax: 1,27,280.53 7517103
Tax Expense:
(1) Currentincome tax 34,972.80 14,297.54
{2) Deferred income tax 25 199,69 19.43
{3) Short/(Excess) Provision for Tax relating to Prior Years 718.53 8,749.47
VIIl. Profit for the Period: 91,389.52 52,104.69
Vill. Other Comprehensive Income (net of Tax) items
that will ot be reclassified to Profit and Loss:
Add: ! Changes in fair value investment in equity 26 0.00 0.00
Less: Acturial Loss on Defined Benefit Plan 0.00 0.00
Tax edjustment on aboye . 0.00 0.00
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year: 0.00 ; 0,00
IX.  Total Comprehensive Income: (VII+VIII) 91,189.52 52,104.69
X Earnings per Equity Share attributable to the o
Owners of the Company (Rupees): -
(Face Value of Rs.10 per Equity Share)
{1) Basic 107.52 6130
(2) Diluted : 107.52 61.30
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Additional Notes to Financial Statement and 30
Significant Accounting Policies
Interms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For K.R.Sriram & CO Shanti Swarup Aggarwal Sadhana Agarwal
Chartered A-cco.% _ (Managing Director & C.E.0.) (Director)
FRN: 3231-435% — @d, (DIN- 00322011) (DIN: 02239529)

3 f
o

e : gl ;
(K. Sriram)’sg Ao jf/ . Swapan Kumar Majumder Narendra Narayan Mandal
Partner: i (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
(M. No.-055149) (PAN-AJFPM3820L) (PAN-ADNPM0074C)

UDIN: 24055199BJZYHA3605
Date: 15th May'z024
Place: Kolkata



INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
(CIN - 135204 WB1987PLCO31664)
2388, A.J. C. Bose Road, Kolkata - 700020

NOTES TO FINANMCIAL STATEMENT:

Rs. in Thousand ("000} | Rs.in Thousand (‘ooo)
N;:e Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
1 Fixed Assets - Refer separate sheet for details ;
Property, Plant & Equipment:
Gross Block 1,00,693.09 87,430.42
Less; Accumulated Deprediation 46,818.60 44,026.66
53,874:49 43,403.77
Other Intangible Assets:
Gross Block 5:114.73 4,914.73
Less: Accumulated Deprediation 4,723.46 4,678.47
391.28 236.26
2 Investment
Unguoted Shares:
42889 Equity Shares of Face Valua of Rs. 10/- each of Prestige Ica Creams
Pwt. Ltd, 6,670.50 30,000.00
( Fair Marketvalue of Unquoted 42889 shares is Rs.155.53/- with premium
of Rs. 145.53/- each as on 31/03/2024)
Bank Fixed Deposits: (Maturity after 1year) 84,332.18 77,637.90
[mvestment in Mutual Funds: 55,000.00 15,000.00
(Market Value as on 31/03/2024 is Rs. 6,26,25,121/)
1,46,002.68 1,22,637.90
3 Loans
Unsecured Loans;
Body Corporates 34,830.53 37,740.39
(Unsecured, Considered good and includes interest as applicable) 34,830.53 37,740.39.
4 Inventories
-Raw Materials 1,16,780.22 1,40,460.77
AWNorl-in-Progress 46,708.53 25,076.19
-Trading Goods 607.97 2,136.81
e 1,64,105,71 1,67,673.76
(i) Valued at Cost or Market Value whicheveris lower
(i) Based on Figures 2s certified By Management
5  Trade Receivable
-Debts outstanding for & pariod exceeding six months 4383114 30,843.67
-Debts outstanding for a period less than six months
Secured Considered good 0.00 0.00
Unsecured Considered good 65,254.35 74,763.96
q 1,09,085.49 95,607.63
-Doubtful: 0.00 0.00
(Refer- Nate30(A)3)) 1,09,085.49. 95,607.63
6  Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand {As certified by the management) 7827 288.87
Balances with Scheduled Banks in Current account. 1,32,586.37 45,127.24
1,32,864.64 45,416.11
7  BankBalance Other than Above
In Fixed Deposit Accounts (Current Matuirity) 5,385.51 6,694.28
5,385.51 6,604.28
8  Current Tax Assets/Liabilities (Net)
Advance Tax & Self Asst. Tax 27,000.00 23,500.00
TDS & TCS Recaivable 1,134,52 834.23
28,134.52 24,334.23
Less: Provision for Tax 34,972.80 14,297.54
; -6,838.28 10,036.69
g Other Current Assets (Considered Good) | {QKE’?
Advance Receivable in Cash or Kind for ﬂ:ﬁﬁ L 44,616.68 18,674.95
Advance Central Excise Duty 4,415.70 4,415.70
Security Deposit 1,483.01 774.45
50,515.39 23,865.11




INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
(CIN - L35204WB1987PLC031664)
2388, A. ). C. Bose Road, Kolkata - 700020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

Fisures are in INR __Figures arein INR
NNO‘:.G . Particulars Asat Ma_r‘ch 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
10 Equity Share Capital ' :
a.Authorised
20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~each 20,000.00 20,000.00
b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: z Ay
8,560,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 8,500.00 8,500.00
8,500.00 8,500.00
¢. Rights, preference and restrictions:
(i) The comapny has only one class of equity share referrred to as Equity shares having a par value of Rsi1of-. Each holder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share.
(it) Dividend, if any, is declarad and paid in Indian Rupees. The dividend, If any,proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders In the ensuing Annual General meeting. '
(fii} In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any 0f the remaining assets of
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such pfef'erentiﬂ amounts exist currently. The distribution
will bein proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,
iv. Detalls of Promotors Shareholding
Name of Shareholder No of Shares %age Xage
Change |
1. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal 3,053,550 35.71 | MIL
2, Sadhana Aggarwal 1,458,200 1744 | NIL
v. Detalls of Sharehalders holding more than 5% of shareholding
Name of Shareholder Noof Shares tage rage
Chanss
1. Shenti Swarup Aggarwal 3,03,550 3571 | NIl
2. Sadhana Aggarwal 1,48,200 17.44 | NIL
3. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal (Karta of HUF) 1,72,000 2024 | NIL
12 Borrowings
Secured Loans )
Union Bank of Indiz, Kolkata - Cash Cradit Account -96,70 22,265.70
(Secured Against Hypothecation of Raw Materials, Statements of current
assets filed by the Company with the Bank are In agreement with the
baoks of accounts. Includes interest (@ 10.50% p.a. and repayable on
demznd)
Packing Credit 0.00 0.00
-06:70 22,265.70
13 Deferred Tax Liabilities
Opening Balance 4,463.22 4,443.79
Add: During the Year 199.69. 19.43
Less: Created earlier for cha ngein Fair value of Investment now reversed
onsale 0.00 0.00
4,662.91 4,463.22
14  Trade Payable
 Outstandings due to MSME 12,030.33 21,742:47
Qutstandings due to other than MSME-
-Sundry Creditors for Goods | 40,118.63 26,128.84
(Refer- Note-30(A)(4)) 52,148.95 47,871.32
15 Other Current Liabilities
Creditor for Expenses 20,526.48 16,840.42
Creditor for Other Finance 180,97 154.58
Creditor for Others 1,728.15 3,536.88
Liabilities for Expenses 8,714.41 3,736.67
Advance from Custormer 1,16,623,91 78,654.20
TDS Payable 4202.46 1,436.58
Duties & Taxes Payable 19,005.91 401.89
1,68,162.29 1,04,761.21




INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
(CIN - L35204WB1987PLC031664)
238B, A. J. C. Bose Road, Kolkata - 700020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

Rs. in Thousand ('000)

Rs. in Thousand ("000)

Note No. Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023
16  Revenue from Operation :
Export Sale (Net) 71,180.43 2,56,013.90
Domestlc Sales 11,56,579.00 8,55,400.48
Trading Sales 8,729.45 8,061.47
Scrap Sales 18,965.68 15,359.50
12,55,454.55 11,34,835.35
17 Otherincome
AMC Received 33418 195.31
Sale of Export Licence 2,559.71 1,501.35
Duty Drawback 1,020.46 3,168.38
Interest Received from Bank FD 5,984.10 4,389.34
Interest Received from Loan Given 2,250,00 2,455.67
Interest Recelved from IT Refund 368.47 622.88
Sundry Balance Written Back 183.64 8.68
Profit on Exchange Rate Fluctuation 2,162.,39 6,816.39
Profit on Sale of Shares 22,270.50 0,00
37,133-45 19,158.00
13 Cost of Material Consumed
Raw Materials
Opening Stock 1,40,460.77 1,28,785.83
Add: Purchase 8,87,054.00 8,46,864.53
Less: Closing Stock 1,16,789.22 1,40,460.77
9,10,725.55 8,35,189.60
Work-in-Progress
Opening Stock 25,076.19 22,282.97
Less: Closing Stock 46,708.53 25,076.19
21,632.34 -2,793-23
8,89,093.21 8,32,396.37
19 Purchase of Stock-in-Trade
Trading Goods 4,861.30 9,959.61
4,861.30 9,559.61
. 20 Change InInventories of Finished Goods
Opening Stock 2,136.81 2,171.46
Less: Closing Stock 607.97 2,136.81
. 1,528.84 34.66
21 Manufacturing & Operating Expenses
Stores & Spare Parts Consumed 8,550.64 5,317.07
Power & Fuel 3,768.71 3,455.54
Fabrication Charges 94,828.24 68,119.44
Repaires to Plant & Machinery 384.64 751.34
Carriage Inward 2,446.19 2,838.10
Factory Expenses 3,108.41 2,666,51
Logistic Charges 3,935.10 3,302.17
Testing Charges 157,10 16718
Generator Expenses 300.84 240.00
112,479.87 86,857.36

A,



INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
(CIN - L35204WB1987PLC031664)
238B, A. 1. C. Bose Road, Kolkata - 700020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

Rs. in Thousand ('o00) Rs. in Thousand ('000)
Note No. Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
22 Employee Benefit Expense
Salary & Bonus 19,740.10 12,161.64
Directors Salary 8,400.00 8,400.00
HRA & Medical Expenses 28,967.43 22,962.12
Contribution to ESI Fund 79415 53.23
Contribution to PF & EPS 2,149.34 1,738:96
Gratuity 1,560:70 472.55
Leave Encashment 835.95 297.16
Exgratia 0.00 100.00
Staff Welfare Expenses 1,088.04 431.04
Staff Fooding Expenses 30381 319.82
63,133:53 46,936.51
23 Finance Cost
Interest Paid 780.93 3,831.62
Bank Charges 920.74 791.83
1,701.67 4,623.45
24  DOther Expenses
Advertisement & Sales Promotion Expenses 2,844.99 3,573:74
Auditor Remuneration 200.00 200.00
Tax Audit Fees 60.00 60.00
GST Audit Fees 50.00 50.00
Commission, Brokerage & Incentives 24,445.85 22,291.79
Conveyance Expenses 502.80 1,079.28
Delivery Charges 4,260.26 3,344.59
Donations 1,555.75 890.80
Subscriptions 176.27 226.54
Director’s Club Expenses 176.90 130,31
Director's Flat Maintenance Expenses 308.76 327.32
Director's Meeting Fees 508.00 1,134.28
Export Expenses 3,116.51 18,373.91
‘General Expenses 1,018.95 1,261:19
Office Expenses 1,720.79 2,070.60
Other Repalring Expenses 375.09 233.58
Interest Others 366.82 537.48
Insurance Expenses I 620.13 498.42
Listing & Filing Fees 7 R”‘A};& 90.52 223.50




INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
(CIN - L35204WB1987PLC031664)
238R, A. 1. C. Bose Road, Kolkata - 7ooo20

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

Rs. in Thousand ('000)

Rs. in Thousand ('000)

Note No, Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 48.23 18.25
Motor Car Running & Maintenance 608.21 77241
Postage & Telegram Expenses 161.98 137.02
Printing & Stationery 197.33 158.80
Processing Fees 428377 79.01
Professional & Legal Expenses 4,795:60 7,941.50
Rent, Rates & Taxes j 1,898.36 2,127.47
Sundry Balance Written Off 576.52 4,567.48
Travelling Expenses 27,279.08 18,426.88
Foreign Tour & Travelling 4,257.42 2,950.17
Telephone Expenses 508.37 642.43
Sale Tax 70.65 0.00

83,229.00 94:329.65
25  Deferred income tax

Depreciation as per Income Tax Act 5,096.34 3,777.58
Less: Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 48.23 18,25
Less: Depreciation as per Companies Act 4,280.07 3,684.60
Timing Difference: 768.04 74.72
Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) @ 26% 199.69 19.43
Add: Opening Deferred Tax Liability 4,463.22 4,443.79
4,662,91 4,463.22
Less: Created earlier for change in Fair value of 0.00 0.00

Investment now reversed on sale
4,662.91 4,463.22

For K.R.Sriram & CO

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 3231‘;,_' E-ﬁﬂ‘ga@‘“

: N
s 3
(K. R. Srirarn Ac_ceV

Partner
(M. No.-o55199)

Date: 15th May'2024
Place: Kolkata

Ll et

Shanti Swarup Aggarwal
(Managing Director & C.E.O.)
(DIN-00322011)

Swapan Kumar Majumder

(Chief Financial Officer)
(PAN-AJFPM3820L)

Sadhana Agarwal
(Director)
(DIN: 02239529)

.

Narendra Narayah Mandal

(Company Secretary)
(PAN-ADNPM0074C)
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- Note-2y: Fair Valuation Technique:

The company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets and finaneial liablities using the best and most relevent data avallable:

The' followmg method and assumptions were use to estimzte the fair values:

1) Fair value of cash deposits, trade recelvables,trade payable,borrowing and other current financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their carrying

amount due to the and short term maturities of thase instruments.

2) fairvalue of investments in quoted non current Equity Shares are based on quoted market price at the reporting date.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The table shown below analyses finandial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation methad.
Level1: quoted pricas in active markats
Level 2t inputs other than quoted prices included within Level1 that are observable, eithet directly or indirectly
Level 3:inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on cbservable market data

Rs. in Thousand (“000) ]
31.032024 31.03.2023 . 31:03.2023
iar;?uzf Fair Value mﬂ:ﬁ g Fair Value . :::J:? Fair Value
Financial assets
2) At fair value through 0CI .

- Investment in equity Shares 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00] 0.00
b)Investment in Ungquoted Shares 6,670.50 6,570.50 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00/ 30,000.00
Q)Investment in Mutual Funds: 55,000.00 55,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00] 15,000.00
d) Trade receivable 1,09,085.49 1,09,085.49 95,607.63 95,607.63 60,881.97 60,881.97
e) Others 1,73,080.67 1,73,080.67 86,850.78 89,850.78, 53,845.72 53,845.72

Total (a+b+c) Ma;&,ﬁ& 3,43,836.66 230,458.42 2,30,458.42 "1,';932-7;69 _11_@,?;?.69
Financial Liabilities
a) Amortized cost
~Borrowing -96.70 -96.70 22,265.70 23,265.70 34,236.21 34,236.21
-Trade Payable 52,148.95 52,148.95 47,871.32 47,871.32 38,514.71 38,514.71
Total 51,052.25 52,052.25 70,137.01 70,137.02 72,750.92 72,750.92

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities;
which have been measured subsequent to initial recoginition at fair value as at 315t Marchz023 :

| Rs: in Thousand ('000)

Assets/ Liabilities measured at fair value

As at 31.03.2024
(Accounted) Level 1 Level 3 Level 3
Financial assets
Equity shares-Ovobel Foods Ltd.. o "

Statement of profit and loss

Assets/ Liabilities measured,+ 1

paliga,,

199:69

19:43

Othercomprehensive income 0.00 0.00
*|Adjustment forSales of Quoted Share 0.00 0.00
Balance as per IND AS 4,662.91 4,463.22




Note-29:
The disclosures required under Ind AS 1g "Employee Benefits"notified in the companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 are as giver below :

A) Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plen, recognized as expenses for the year is as under:

Particulars. Year ended 31.03.2024| Year ended 31.03.2023|

- A .
Company's contribution to Provident Fund £ 21,449,340 3 17,38,954
B) Defined Benefit Plan:

The employee's gratuity fund scheme managed by 2 Life Insurance Corperation of india is a defined benefit plan but the present value of obligation is
determined by actuarial valuation as per Ind AS 15. Actuarial valuation as per Ind AS has been obtainad for E.Y 2023-24. The contribution towards the
employee's gratuity fund for the year 202324 s Rs. 15,44,160/- which is based on the LIC Gratuity Fund Valuation.

M et

For K.R.Sriram & CO Shanti Swarup Aggarwal Sadhana Agarwal
Chartered Accouna’m- . {Managing Director & C.EO))  (Director)
FRN: 323145{/ o)) Nk (DIN-09322011) (DIN: 92239529
s z gt e | W - ] ;
i @ d i Y
Ve &7/ ;
(K. R, e/ d At . Swapan Kumar Majumder Narendra Narayan Mandal
Partner et (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
(M. No055199) {PAN-AJFPM3820L) _ (PAN-ADNPMO0074C)

Date: 15th May'z024
Place: Kolkata



INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED

(CIN - L35204WB19B7PLC031664)

2388, A. L, G, Bose Road, Kolkata- 700020

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024;

Particulars 31st March 2024 3ist March 2023
Rs.in Thousand (*000) | Rs.In Thousand ("o00) | Rs.In Thousand ('o00) | Rs.in Thousand ('o00)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: = Xy
Net Profit as per PL Account 1,27,280.53 7513
Add: (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 48.23 1825
Add: (Profit)/Less on Sale of Investments o.00 0:00 .
Add: Interest (Net) 6,900.89] ¥ hBadan L
Add: Direct Tax Pzid Inclusive of TDS 16,156,44 16404
Add: Depraciation 4,280.07 3,684.60
) 1,40,864.38 75,865,51
Addi{Less)Foreign exchange Loss/(Galn) Treated seperately 0.00 1,40,864.38 ©.00 75,865.51
Less: Current Tax 34,9732.80 14.207.54
1,05,89158 61,567.97
Add: (Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets:
Inventory. , 3,568.05 14,433.50
Trade Receivables 13,477.85 “34,725.65
Add:Increasef (Decrease) in Carrent Liabiities:
Trade payables 4,177.64 9:356.60
Qther Current Liabilitiss 63,401.08 B517.47
Short term Provision 0,00 57,768.91 0,00 -31,2354:9L
1,63,660.49 3o,:&:.881
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchasef{Sale)of Firad Assets 15,554.04 943.69
Purchase/{Sale) of Invastments 23,364.78 10,557.19] _
Other Curent Assets 26,650,258 -36,321.60 b
Tatal Qutflow 65,569.09 14,830.72
Total Inflow - Sale of Fixed Assets 600.00 27.54
Total Inflow - Szle of |nvestmants D00 0,00
Total Inflow - Interest Received B,602.56 7/467.89
Less: Net outflow from Investing Activities 56,366.53 22,3165,
1,02,293.96 3%,599.02
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in Secured Loan Taken =23,362.40 41,970.51
Increase in Loan Given to Body Corporates 2,909.86] 6,907.02
Interast & Finance Charge Paid -1,701.67 623,45
Net cutflow from Fimpcihg-ﬂctivitfes L5421 -6,686.94
|Net Cash Increase/Decrease during the year 86,139.76 45,912.08
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Opering Cash and Bank Balange 52,1039 6,198.31
Net Cash Increase/Decreasa during the year 86,139.76] 45,912.08
1,38,250.15 52,110.39
Addf{Less). Forelgn Exchange Gain/{Loss) 0.00 0.00
Closing Cash and Bank Balance and Equivalents 138,250015 52,110.39

Interms of our report of even date

For KiR.5riram & CO

Chartered Accountants= ~= «

FRN: 323146E i g o
’ “o

Partnar
(M. No-055199)

Date: 15th May'2024
Place: Kolkata

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

I gt

Shantl Swarup Aggarwal
(Managing Director & C.E.Q.)
{DIN-00322011)

Swapan Kumar Majumder
{Chief Financial Officer),
[PAN-AJFPM3820L)

S I"hana Agarwal
(Director)
(DIN: 03230529)

Narendra Narayan Mandal
(Company Secretary)
(PAN-ADNFPMoo74C)




INDUSS FOOD PRODUCTS & EQUIPMENTS LIMITED
(CIN = L35204WB1987PLC031664)-
238B, A. J. €. Bose Road, Kolkata - 700020

NOTE - 3¢

A. Additional Notes to Accounts:

Company Overview: -

Induss Food Products & Equipments Limited is a Public Company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are
publicly traded on the Calcutta Stock Exchange (“CSE”). The registered office is situated at
238B, A. J. C. Bose Road, 3™ Floor; Kolkata-700020.

The Company is engaged in manufacture of Rice Mills Plants, its parts & Equipments.

2. Capacities and Production: -
Class of Goods Unit Licensed Capacity | Actual Production
Rice Mill Machinery Pcs. 193 176
3. Trade Receivables:- ’
A receivable is classified as a ‘Trade Receivable’ if it is in respect to the amount due from
customers on account of goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortized cost, less expected credit loss, if any.
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule:
- | Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
(Rs. in Thousand) e e
i g NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Considered
Doubtful
Disputed  Trade
Receivables- NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Considered Good

Disputed  Trade
Receivable- :
Considered
Doubtful

NIL NIL NIL | NIL NIL




4. Trade Payables:

A payable is classified as ‘Trade Payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of
goods purchased':or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts
represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the ead of
financial year which are unpaid.

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Paitigiilare: payment (Rs. in Thousand) Total (Rs. in
Less than 1 o . More than3 | Thousand)
Year Years
MSME 11,987.85/- NIL 42.48/- NIL 12,030.33/-
Others 39,967.96/- NIL NIL 150.66/- 40,118.63/
Disputed Dues- ' _
MSME NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
g'tfe“rts“'“d e NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
5. Followings are the Financial Ratios: -
Sl - Numerator / Ratios (F.Y.- | Ratios (F.Y.-
No. Feralaiines, Denominator 2023-(24) 2022-(23) Variance
1 | Current ratio Current Assets /[ Current 210 2.29 (8.37%)
Liabilities
2 | Debt-Equity ratio | Total Debt / Total Equity 0.00 0.06 (100.30%)
(Note-1)
3 | Debt service Net Operating Income 163.99 20.62 695.33%
coverage ratio before Intt. [ Debt (Intt.
(Note-2) - | Exp.s)
. 4 | Return on equity Net Profit [Total Equity 27.35 20.10 36.07%
ratio (Note-2) '
5 | Inventory Stock (Total Purchase)/ . 5.40 5.25 2.82%
turnover ratio Avg. Inventory
6 | Trade receivables Gross Turnover [ Avg. 12.27 14.50 (15.42%)
turnover ratio Receivables
7 | Trade payables Total Purchase / Avg. 7.9 19.50 (8.19%)
turnover ratio Payables
8 | Netcapital Gross Turnover [ Total 2.70 3.03 (11.10%)
turnover ratio Equity
9 | Net profit ratio Net Profit [ Total 9.85 6.51 51.17%
(Note-2) Turnover
10 | Return on capital EBIT [ Capital Employed 27.25 19.72 38.21%
employed (Note-2)
11 | Returnon . Return [ Investment 6.46 6.51 (0.72%)
investment




Note:

1 - Debt-Equity ratio decreased due to decrease in non- current liabilities and less utilization
of Cash Credit during the current year.

2 — Debt service coverage ratio,

Return on equity ratio, Net profit ratio & Return on capital

employed increased due to increase in Net Profit for the current year as compared to last

year,
3 - Last year ratios have been
statermnents.

6. Key Management Personnel: -

changed keeping in line with the current year financial

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal

Relative of Key Management Pers

onnel 1. Smt. Sadhana Agarwal
2. Mr. Gaurav Khemani

Entities over which Key Managem

ent Prestige Ice Cream Pvt. Ltd. (Mr. Shanti Swarup

Personnel and their relatives have
significant influence

Personnel and their relatives have Agarwal and Mr. Gaurav Khemani are common
significant influence Directors)
Entities over which Key Management Induss Rice Accessories Pvt. Ltd. (Mr, Shanti

Swarup Agarwal and Smt. Sadhana Agarwal are
common Directors)

7. Managerial Remuneration: -

* Since no remuneration and commission has been paid to the Directors other than their club

expenses & flat maintenance expenses, computation of net profit for the purpose of
Director’s remuneration ufs 349 of the Companies Act’2013 need not be required.

8. Related Party Disclosures: -

'-3 # {\\h ig?”
“ Apnourtr

sl. Name of the Designation Nature of Amount
No. Related Parties Transaction (Rs. in
i Thousand)

% Mr. Shanti Swarup | Director Salary 8,400.00/-
Aggarwal

2. Smt. Sadhana Director Meeting Fees 180.00/-
Agarwal

3: Mr. Gaurav Director Meeting Fees 160,00/~
Khemani

4. Induss Rice Company in which Given Loan & 25,000.00/-
Accessories Pyt.Ltd | Director is Interested | Advance

5. Induss Rice Company in which Interest on Loan & 2,250.00/
Accessories Pvt.Ltd | Director is Interested | Advance

6. Induss Rice Company in which Sale made in the 12,611.12/-
Accessories Pvt.Ltd | Director is Interested | course of Business

% Induss Rice Company in which Purchase made inthe | 5,220.32/-
Accessories Pvt.Ltd Dlrector Jsmterested course of Business




9. Auditor Remuneration: -

Particulars:

2023-24 (Rs. in Thousand)

2022-23 (Rs. in Thousand)
Statutory Audit Fees 200.00/- ; 200.00/-
Tax Audit Fees 60.00/- - 650.00/-
GST Audit Fees 50.00/- 50.00/-
Total: 310.00/- 310.00}-

10.
11,
12
| 13

14.

15.

16.

Travelling expenses includes Director’s travelling for Rs. 18,38, 969/- (Previous year figure
was Rs. 6,26,281/-)

The Company has no employee to whom provisions of section 217 (2A) of the Companies
Act, 2013 is applicable.

The Sundry Debtor of Rs. 5,76,617/- has been written off during the year (Previous Year Rs.
45,67,475/-)-

There is total amount of Rs. 1,20,30,325/- outstanding towards Small Scale and Ancillary
undertakings as at the year end.

The Company has been served a Demand Notice by the Central Excise Department for a
sum of Rs. Rs. 5,88,76,035/- vide Order No. 04/COMMR/CE/KOL-11/Adj/2015-16 Dated.
15/01/2014. The Company has contested this Demand and based on the input received, the
Company is likely to get complete relief from this Demand.

TDS receivables during the year bocked in accounts and reconciled with 26AS as on the
date of Audit Report.

During the year under review, the Company had detected a fraud allegedly committed by
an employee (since terminated) of Rs. 71,85,206/- out of which a sum of Rs. 7.45,000/- has
been recovered. The Company is pursuing all optimum for recovery and in hopeful of
recovering of the total amount involved.




B. Significant Accounting Policies: -

1.  Basis of Accounting: - _
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost convention, e
a) on a going concern bass, ;
b) in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles,
¢) onan accrual system of accounting,
d) in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

2. Basis of Measurement: -
The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual
basis, except for the items that have been measured at the fair value as required by the
relevant Ind AS.

3. Use of Estimates: -

The preparation of the financial statements is In conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles which require management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year, the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent liabilities as on
the date of the financial statements. Examples of such estimates include useful life of
Fixed Assets, provision for doubtful debts/ advances, deferred tax, etc. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Such difference is recognized in the year/s in which the results
are known [ materialized.

4. Cash Flows Statement: -

Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with Indirect method as prescribed in IND
AS- 7. For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash
and short-term deposits, having maturity less than 3 months, The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

5. Fixed Asset and Depreciation: - : ‘
' a) Fixed assets include all expenditure of capital nature and are stated at cost (net of
GST, wherever applicable) less accumulated depreciation.
b) Are held for use in the production or supply of goods or service, for rental to athers,
or for administrative purpose,
¢) Intangible Assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributing to the asset will flow to the enterprise and cost of the
asset can be measured reliably.
d) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on written down method as per schedule 11
of the companies’ act 2013.
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6.

&

9’

10.

Impairment of Fixed Assets: - . -
a) Consideration is given at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any

indication of impairment of the carrying amount of the Company’s fixed assets. If
any indication exists, an asset’s recoverable amount:is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. ‘
b) Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an
indication that the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exists or
has decreased.

Capital Expenditure Including Capital Work-in-Progress and Depreciation: -
F.Y.-2023-24 F.Y.-2022-23
Capital Expd. (Rs. | Depreciation (Rs. | Capital Expd. (Rs. | Depreciation (Rs.
in Thousand) in Thousand) in Thousand) in Thousand)
Rice Mill | 15,554.04/- 4.280,07/- 943.69/- 3,684,60/-
Machinery
Total: 15,554.04/- 4.280,07/-

943.69/-

3,684,60/-

Investments; - :
a) Current investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value determined on an
individual investment basis,
b) Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision is made for diminution, other
than temporary, in the value of such investments.
¢) Investment in Equity Shares are initially measured at fair value. Any subsequent gain
orloss is recognized through other compressive income.

Revenue Recognition: -

Revenue/lncome and Cost/Expenditure are accounted on accrual basis as and when they
are earned or incurred. Company recognizes revenue when the amount can be reliably
measured. Revenues are recognized on the basis of the bills raised against customers and
advances if any received from them before execution of work/installation are duly shown
under Customer advances. Sales are net of returns, claims, trade discount, rebates, goods
& service tax (GST) etc.

Inventories: - .
Inventories are valued at the lower of; cost determined on weighted average basis and net
realizable value,

Finished goods are valued at cost of raw materials and conversion thereof including the
cost incurred in the normal course of business in bring the goods up to the present
condition, or at net realizable value whichever is lower.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimate cost of completion and esi‘;Rimgted cost necessary to make the sale.
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1. Employee Benefits: -

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund & ESI are charged to Profit and Loss
account for the year when the contribution to the fund is due.

Gratuity and Leave Encashment liability are non-contributory defined benefit obligation
and are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method

made at the end of each financial year.

Bonus is provided to eligible staff members as per Bonus Act.

12. Foreigncurrency transactions: -
Y

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at

the date of transaction.

At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing
rate. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are reported at the exchange

rate ruling at the date of transaction.

Exchange differences are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they

arise.

Exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign currency transactions and from

year-end restatement are recognized in profit and loss.

. A .

Particulars:

2023-24 (Rs. in Thousand)

2022-23 (Rs. in Thousand)

Currency

Value of Export on CIF Basis 71,130.00/- 2,43,363.92/-
- Value of Export on FOB Basis 67,306.22/- 16,025.00/-

Value of Import on CIF Basis 4,204.70/- 8,224.93/-

Travelling Exp.s in Foreign 932.84/- 1,139,29/-

13. Borrowing Cost: -

Borrowing costs attributable to the qualifying fixed assets during construction/exploration,
renovation and modernization are capitalized. Such borrowing costs are apportioned on
the average balance of capital work-in-progress for the year. Other borrowmg costs are

recognized as an expense in the period in which they are mcurrecl




14. Segment Reporting; -
As per Indian Accounting Standard -17 ‘Segment Reporting’, Company’s primary business
segment is Rice Mill Machinery.

2023-24 - 202223+ .
Rs. in Thousand Rs. in Thousand

Segment Revenue: (Gross Sales/Income from
each Segment)

Rice Mill Machinery

i) External Revenue : 12,55,454.55/- 11,34,835.35/-
ii) Intersegment Revenue - -
Total 12,55,454.55/- 11,34,835.35/-
Segment Result: (Profit/(Loss) before Tax &

Interest)

Rice Mill Machinery 1,27,280.53/- 75,171.13/)-
Total Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 1,27,280.53/- 75,171.43/-

Segment Assets & Liabilities have been re-arranged for current & previous year.

. 15. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: - .

a) Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized
when there Is a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that
there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabllities are not recognized but
are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in
the Financial Statements.

b) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-29 on “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” notified under the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

As per the above policy followings are the Contingent Liabilities:

2023-24 (Rs.in | 2022.23 (Rs. in
Thousand) Thousand)
Bank Guarantee issued to WBSER B890.51}- 8,944.24/-
Bank Guarantee issued to Pattabhi Agro Foods 13,200.00/- NIL
Pvt. Ltd, Andhra Pradesh ,
Bank Guarantee issued to Tanveer Food Limited, 8,209.58/- NIL
Dhaka, Bangladesh

16. Earnings per Share: -
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. .=
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Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to the equity shareholders by the sum of weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period and potential diluted equity shares. °

Particulars: As at 31.03.2024 | Asat 31.03.2023
Net Profit for the year considered for calculating | Rs. 9,13,89,516/- | Rs. 5,21,04,690/-
EPS(A)
No. of Equity Shates outstanding during the year (B) 850,000 8,50,000
Basic & Diluted EPS of Rs, 10/- each (A/B) , Rs.107.52)- |  Rs.61.30/-

17. Taxesonlncome:-

Current tax is determined on the basis of taxable income in accordance with the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax liability/asset resulting from ‘timing difference’
between accounting income and taxable income is accounted for considering the tax rate
& tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on Lhe reporting date.
Deferred tax asset is recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that the asset will be realized in future. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for their realizability.

18. Events Occurring after Balance Sheet Date;
Material events if any, occutring after Balance Sheet date are taken into account.

19. The previous year’s figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever
' necessary. : '

Interms of our report of even date.
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For K. R. Sriram & Co. Shanti Swarup Aggarwal Sadhana Agarwal
Chartered Accountants (Managing Director & C.E.O.) (Director)
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